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Consolidated management report

Dear Stakeholder,

We are pleased to report to you on the operationghie preceding financial year and to submit the
balance sheet, notes and the corporate and coasaligrofit and loss accounts for the 12-monthogeending
31 December 2016 for approval.

The consolidated accounts have been drawn up ordace with IFRS.

General comments

2016 was the first financial year for the entitreerged in Luxembourg. The mergers between Banque
Degroof Luxembourg and Petercam Luxembourg, onoie hand, and Degroof Gestion Institutionnelle —
Luxembourg S.A. and Petercam Institutional Assendigement Luxembourg S.A., on the other hand, took
place on 1 April, giving rise to Banque Degroof édeam S.A. and Degroof Petercam Asset Services S.A.
respectively. The date from which the entities teated for accounting purposes as being mergeditis,
retroactive effect, 1 January 2016.

2015 was an exceptional year in that it compriseanbnths, as a result of the change in the clodatg
from 30 September to 31 December. The three-mdffdrehce between the two financial years mustetfoee
be taken into account when comparing the 2016 a8 esults.

In December 2016, the Luxembourg Division welcorBedno Houdmoritas the new CEO, replacing
the acting CEO, Philippe Masset. At the same tifrank Wagenénwas appointed independent director of the
Board of Directors of the Bank. Nathalie BaSyGilles Firmirf, Xavier Van Campenhoit Frank van
Bellingerf, Christian JacoBsand Benoit Daenérlso joined to reinforce the Bank's Board of Dives.

Negotiations regarding the sale of the Bank's nitynanterest in Landolt & Cie S.A. were successfull
concluded in 2016. The Group is now fully positidran the Swiss market through Degroof Petercam 8anq
Privée (Suisse), a wholly-owned subsidiary of theept company.

The previous period was marked by the continuedirdemn interest rates. The European Central Bank's
negative replacement rate rose from 30 to 40 hasists in March 2016. The year was marked by highly
volatile equity markets, which experienced a stdownward correction at the start of the year befaraing
around just before the end of the year.

Against this backdrop, the 2016 consolidated incevas down in comparison with 2015 —which, as a
reminder, had three more months— reaching € 47liomi

Assets deposited by private clients totalled €@#ll&n at 31 December 2016. Substantial grosoimd
during the year were largely offset by a constaclignging legal and fiscal environment.

The second pillar of Asset Services (fund admiaigin for the Group and for third-party promoters)
reaffirmed its importance and outlook during theiquk growing 3.8%, i.e. € 28.8 hillion.

The balance sheet remains as strong as over thewpawber of years with a capital adequacy ratio of
28.9% (the legal requirement is 8.6%).

The cost income ratio remains satisfactory (51.6¥%aking it possible to achieve a return on equity o
22.6%.

The Luxembourg Division and its subsidiaries hawetal of 341 employees as at 31 December 2016,
after the merger of the teams.

! Appointment to the Board of Directors at the stéir2017

2 Appointment to the Board of Directors occurre@@16



Banque Degroof Petercam Luxembourg S.A.

The results of balance sheet management werevggsithile the interest margin and income from fees
and commissions, primarily transaction fees, dedin

Net banking income dropped 5.4%, while net incoafer amortisation and tax, totalled € 61 millian,
0.4% increase. As the comparison of the finanaary is biased, as a result of changes in theidorat the
financial year and consolidation scope followinge tmerger, the Bank's statutory results are pobitive
influenced by the capital gains realised on thessaf shares to other entities of the Group asgbdine merger.

The Belgian branch, which only carries out fund amdstration, ended the period with a profit of & 1.
million.

Main risks to which the Luxembourg Division is expsed
The Bank's risk exposure is discussed in note étheofinancial statements for the period ended 31
December 2016. By the nature of its activities,ltheembourg Division is exposed to some risks, @pally:

. market risks, essentially linked to investment\aiiéis in securities portfolios (equities, bondagdo its
interest rate transformation activity (ALM)

. liquidity risk resulting from differences in mattieis between financing resources (generally steom)t
and the uses thereof

. counterparty risk, linked to credit activities {akrlargely covered by the use of securities ptidfoas
collateral) and intermediation operations in defxainstruments

. wealth management risk (the possibility of legaticac by clients if mandates are not respected,
commercial risk of loss of dissatisfied customarg] reputational risk)

. operational risk resulting from its activities, inding banking activities (error in order executidraud,
cybercrime, etc.), custodian services (loss of tagser fund management (non-compliance with
constraints)

Circumstances that could significantly influence tle development of the group
In the context of the implementation of the inteigma projects over the next three years, signifiddn

investments will be approved in the main segmehg&ctivity of the Bank, with a view to gradually@gping it
with first class technology, most notably in thgitdil field.

As a result of the merger on the one hand and théugl deployment of new IT technologies on the
other, the Group will continue to benefit from sygies and will be equipped with a modern platfommnpoting
the growth of the segments of activity.

In general, the growth and profitability of the @poare also influenced by:

. the continuing effort to grow the business as arferwopportunities arise, as demonstrated by past
acquisitions and commercial investments

. changes in assets under management and stock sarket

. the macroeconomic environment

Policy concerning the use of financial instruments
Group companies use derivatives for their own actas follows:

In the context of asset and liability managementNl)\ interest rate derivatives (mainly futures and
interest rate swaps) are used to hedge the longiteerest rate risk of the Group.

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge a portfélsmeereign bonds and covered bonds from a micro-
hedging perspective (the portfolio is recognisedaatvalue through profit or loss, the hedges @amdertaken
position by position) but also overall, from a m@abiedging perspective. This use of derivativesipesvised by
the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALMAC

Similarly, the Bank’s treasury department (intenege risks of less than two years) uses inteiast r
derivatives and treasury swaps to manage the Gsdnigrest rate and treasury risk.



Managing the Group’s foreign exchange position atsolves the use of derivatives (forward foreign
exchange contracts and currency swaps) to covdr batmitments towards clients and the financing of
subsidiaries in their operating currencies.

Derivatives (purchase of put options with sale afl options) are used to hedge some investment
portfolio positions and to steer their returns.

Derivatives in respect of equity positions that bheelging operations from an economic perspectige ar
recognised as financial assets designated atdhiethrough profit or loss.

The Luxembourg Division also engages in interméatiadctivities on behalf of its clients.

Research and development activities
The Luxembourg Division and its subsidiaries handartaken no research and development activities.

Treasury shares
The Luxembourg Division and its subsidiaries did acquire treasury shares during the period.

Proposed appropriation of earnings at 31 December016

(in EUR)
Net Earnings for the period 61 048 999
Earnings carried forward at 30 September 2014 103 895 398
Allocation to other reserves 6 551 000
Allocation to the reserve that is unavailable faatribution (14 765 220)

Earnings available for distribution 156 730 17

Interim dividend of €35.00 gross for the 740,008rsls (25 900 000)
Retained earnings

130 830 17

Degroof Petercam Asset Management S.A. (DPAS)

Ownership interest 99,95%
Balance sheet total EUR 68 962 663
Equity EUR 18 507 136
Net income EUR 8 106 225
Headcount (average) 21 employees

2016 ended with net earnings of € 8.1 million. Tlaeg up by more than 50% compared with the net
earnings for the 2014/2015 financial year whichddsl5 months.

With a total of € 25 billion as at 31 December, [3Assets under management are up by 23%
compared with 31 December 2015, € 3.6 billion (1&%o)vhich is the direct result of the merger wittAM
Luxembourg.

The management company services for promoters, geanand third-party advisors business posted
growth of 13%, reaching € 5,6 billion, which regreted 23% of total assets.

At the same time, the Group's assets (excludingu¥)eare, thanks in particular to the merger, up by
29% to € 18.9 billion, which is equivalent to 76%total assets. Venus assets decreased by 28%0t6 €
million.

At the end of December, DPAS had a total of 24 epgzs in Luxembourg. The increase of six people
in relation to 2015 is largely owing to the mergéth PIAM Luxembourg, but also the resources resgiito
maintain the growth of businesses in 2016.



D.S. Lux S.A.

Ownership interest 100,00%
Balance sheet total EUR 483 758
Equity EUR 316 437
Net income EUR 108 366
Headcount (average) 2 employees

Degroof Asset Management Hong Kong Ltd

91.84% owned by the Group, the remainder being bgldhe CEO and co-founder, Degroof Asset
Management Hong Kong Ltd ended its second peridld aviprofit that was lower than the previous firiahc
year. There were two capital increases in Marchiarm@kecember 2016, of HK$ 2.8 million and HK$ 2 lioih,
respectively, to maintain the subsidiary's busiegss

Other interests

Apart from minority interests of Promotions Parti®A., a Bank subsidiary in real estate development
projects in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, the pitensolidated subsidiaries have no employees ard w
non-operating at 31 December 2016. They do notamgiany particular comment.

Conclusion

Apart from this, there were no events after theoriépg date and up to the date of this report tvatd
impact the financial statements of the Luxembouirgdidn and of its subsidiaries.

In a world seeing profound change, the Luxembourgsidn has shown, thanks to its committed and
competent staff, its flexibility and ability to goato this complex environment which offers as many
opportunities as it does risks.

The strong balance sheet represents a valuablerptathat reflects the prudence of the teams aed th
confidence of the shareholders.

We would like to express our gratitude to all owlleagues, who have shown determination and
enthusiasm, not only when performing the day-to-deyk of the Luxembourg Division but also in alleth
preparatory works for the merger in Luxembourg tracorresponding and successful migration of assetl
result of this merger.

The 2017 financial year will mark a new chapter ttoe Group in Luxembourg, since it represents the
thirtieth anniversary of the Bank's business inémkourg.

Indicators show the economic recovery momenturrhén future is somewhat promising, even though
there is still some uncertainty about internatiayebpolitics.

In this context, the Luxembourg Division will comtie to reinforce and develop its capabilities axAd
to both private and institutional clients, and wést that our specific business model, which iria with the
Group's strategy, will enable our clients to meeirtcurrent and future goals.

Lastly, we would like to take this opportunity tocerely thank our clients for their trust and Ithyaour
colleagues for their ongoing commitment; and owrsholders and partners and the members of thedRbar
Directors for helping us to meet our objectives.

Bruno Houdmont Alain Schockert
CEO Chairman of the Board of Directors



Report of the statutory auditor

Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

In accordance with the instructions given to ugh®yBoard of Directors, we audited the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Banque DegRatércam Luxembourg S.A., comprising the constditia
balance sheet as of 31 December 2016, as welleasathisolidated statement of comprehensive incohnee, t
consolidated statement of changes in equity anddhsolidated statement of cash flows for the plegioded on
that date, and a summary of significant accourpivlicies and other explanatory notes.

Responsibility of the Boardof Directors for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the prapan and fair presentation of these financial
statements, in accordance with the Internationaliéial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Earop
Union, as well as an internal control that it deerasessary to enable the preparation of finantatédients that
are free of material misstatement, whether dueatadfor errors.

Responsibility of the statutory auditor

Our role is to express an opinion on these cors@d financial statements in light of our audit. We
carried out our audit in accordance with the Intéional Auditing Standards as adopted for Luxemgdayr the
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur FinancierSSThese standards require that we uphold ethical
principles and plan and perform the audit so asbiain reasonable assurance that the consolidatadcfal
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves applying procedures designed litaio audit evidence concerning the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesiefihe procedures selected depend on the statamalijor's
judgement, as also does the assessment of the aisketerial misstatement in the consolidated faian
statements, whether due to fraud or errors. In ngaktiis assessment, the statutory auditor takesuatof the
internal controls in place in the entity in respettthe preparation and fair presentation of thesotidated
financial statements in order to design audit ploces that are appropriate in the circumstancesnanfor the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectisgmd the entity's internal controls.

An audit also involves assessing the appropriatenas the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates madeebBoard of Directors, as well as evaluating therall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we obtainedif§cgent and appropriate to provide a basis for ou
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaegive a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of Banque Degroof Petercam Lukenrg S.A. as of 31 December 2016, as well assof it

consolidated financial performance and of its ctidated cash flows for the period ended on that dat
accordance with the International Financial Repgrtandards as adopted by the European Union.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for othepinfation. Other information comprises the inforroati
contained in the management report, but does ohtde the consolidated financial statements ands@tutory
auditor's report on the aforementioned statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statemeltes not include other information and we do not
provide any guarantee regarding this information.

In connection with our audit of the consolidatedaficial statements, our responsibility is to reaal t
other information and, in doing so, consider whethe other information is materially inconsistevith the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledigiined in the audit or otherwise appears to beenady



misstated. If, based on the work we have performedconclude that there is a material misstatermettte
other information, we are required to report it. Wére nothing to report in this regard.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report is consistehttiié consolidated financial statements and has be
prepared in accordance with applicable legal prongs

Luxembourg, the of May 2017 KPMG Luxembourg,

Certified Audit Company

S. Chambourdon
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Balance Sheet

(in EUR)
Assets Notes 31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Cash and sight accounts with central banks 8.1 592 328 301 137 234 165
Financial assets held for trading 8.2 59 314 35¢ 77 020 695
Financial assets at fair value through profit aoss$| 8.3 905 669 34¢ 615 359 374
Available-for sale financial assets 8.4 255909 13t 833 633 968
Loans and advances to credit institutions 8.5 326 853 94¢ 647 715 022
Loans and advances to customers 8.6 372 850 50¢ 439 816 764
Participating interests 8.8 43 396 136 224
Held-to-maturity investments 8.8 79 097 494 81 935 320
Property, plant & equipment 8.9 43 949 004 43 847 245
Intangible assets 8.10 20 515 164 7746 411
Interests in companies accounted for using equéthod 8.11 0 13 336 410
Other assets 8.12 60 017 98¢ 60 387 252
Total assets 2 716 548 64: 2 958 168 85(
(in EUR)

Liabilities & equity Notes 31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
Liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading 8.13 63 410 052 84 635 793
Deposits from credit institutions 8.14 90 946 57¢ 34 691 326
Customer deposits 8.15 2 240 405 82( 2 499 988 858
Provisions 8.16 3672711 6 650 000
Current and deferred tax liabilities 8.18 25990 501 19 551 645
Other liabilities 8.17 61 878 20C 62 688 875
Total liabilities 2 486 303 86!
Equity
Capital subscribed 8.19 37 000 00C 37 000 000
Share premiums 8.19 40 356 00C 40 356 000
Reserves and retained earning 8.19 104 628 10¢ 160 621 831
Revaluation reserves 8.4/8.19 484 942 1669 428
Profit for the year 8.19 47 723 172 60 618 594

Interim dividend 0 (50 320 000)
Non controlling participating interests recognise@quity  8.19 52 560 16 500

Total equity

Total liabilities & equity

230 244 78(
2 716 548 64

249 962 35

2 958 168 85(

The notes refer to the appendix and are an intpgirélof the consolidated financial statements



Income Statement

(in EUR)

Income Statement Notes 31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Interest income 9.1 45 288 721 47 615 164
Interest charges 9.1 (33898 454 (34 733 598)
Dividend income 9.2 2 032 565 3408 051
Commissions received 9.3 254 194 52¢ 303 416 486
Commissions paid 9.3 (166 925 592 (200 057 216)
Net gains (losses) on financial instruments hetdrfding 9.4 10 352 18C 15 904 662
Net gains (losses) on financial instruments at\alue 9.5 617 884 (2 430 653)
fNatiert\?;Ln; (losses) on financial instruments notsuesd at 96 5651 191 5 753 305
Other net operating result 9.7 6 645 876 3210210
Net revenues 123 958 89¢ 142 086 411
Personnel expenses 9.8 (37 322 241 (42 679 923)
General and administrative expenses 9.9 (23 327 590 (17 595 706)
Depre_ciat_ion of.prope_rty, plant and equipment and 9.10 (6 094 654) (5 385 259)
amortisation of intangible assets

Provisions 9.11 2 550 00C -4 598 679
Net impairment losses on assets 9.12 (2 593 897) -2 968 771
;r;?rr]%gf profit/(loss) of companies accounted &ingithe equity (16 369) 153 611
Profit (loss) before tax 57 154 14t 69 011 684
Tax expense 9.13 (9 441 509) (8 438 185)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 47 712 63€ 60 573 499
Profit for the year attributable to non-controllimgerests (10 536) (45 095)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners d the parent 47 723 172 60 618 594

Statement of Comprehensive Income
(in EUR)

Other Comprehensive Income
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners d the
parent

Remeasurement of fair-value - Available-for-saf&ficial
assets

Total Other Comprehensive Incomé

9.14

31.12.201¢
47 712 63¢€

(1 184 486)
(1 184 486)

31.12.2015
60 573 499

(8 298 124)
(8 298 124

Total Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income for the year attributableadie-controlling
interests

Comprehensive income for the year attributable tawners of

46 528 15C
(10 536)

46 538 68¢

52 275 375
(45 095)

52 320 47(¢

the parent

! Gains and losses recognized directly in equitypheax.

The notes refer to the appendix and are an intpgirdlof the consolidated financial statements



Changes in Equity

(in EUR)
Non-
controlling
Equity  participating
Reserves anc Profit/(loss) attributable to interests
Share retained Revaluation for the Interim  owners of the  recognised in
Changes in equit Share capital premiums earnings reserves financial year dividend parent eguit Total Equit
Balance at 30.09.2014 37 000 00C 40 356 00C 152 247 19C 9 967 552 53018 844 (45880000, 246 709 58¢
Appropriation of prior year's profit/(loss) 0 0 7 138 844 0 (53 018 844, 45 880 00C 0 0 0
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 0 0 0 0 60 618 594 0 60 618 594 (45 095) 60 573 499
Transactions with minority shareholders 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 518 26 518
Changes in consolidation scope 0 0 959 446 0 0 959 446 0 959 446
Translation differences 0 0 (315 659) 0 0 (315 659) 0 (315 659)
Remeasurement at fair value 0 0 0 (8 298 124) 0 0 (8 298 124) 0 (8 298 124)
Interim dividend 0 0 0 0 0 (50 320 000; (50 320 000; 0 (50 320 000)
Other Changés 0 0 592 010 0 0 0 592 010 0 592 010
Balance at 31.12.2015 37 000 00C 40 356 00C 160 621 831 1 669 428 60 618 594 (50 320 000; 249 945 85¢
Appropriation of prior year’s profit/(loss) 0 0 10 298 594 0 (60 618 594, 50 320 00C 0 (10 536) (10 536)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 0 0 0 0 47 723 172 0 47 723 172 0 47 723 172
Transactions with minority shareholders 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46 596 46 596
Changes in consolidation scépe 0 0 (66 225 548, 0 0 0 (66 225 548) 0 (66 225 548)
Translation differences 0 0 (34 305) 0 0 0 (34 305) 0 (34 305)
Remeasurement at fair value 0 0 0 (1 184 486) 0 0 (1 184 486) 0 (1 184 486)
Interim dividend 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Changés 0 0 (32 466) 0 0 0 (32 466) 0 (32 466)

Balance at 31.12.2016 37 000 00C 40 356 00C 104 628 10¢ 484 942 47 723 172 230 192 22C 230 244 784

1Changes due to Group profit sharing schemes (deeldd?).

2Changes are mainly related to the goodwill follogviPetercam’s integration and to other changesnsalalation scope (see note 8.19).

The notes refer to the appendix and are an intpgirdlof the consolidated financial statements



Cash-flow statement

(in EUR)
Cash-flow statement Notes 31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Pre-tax profit 57 154 14& 69 011 684
Non-monetary items included in profit and other adjustments: 13 506 27& 12 895 965
Share-based payments (523 790) 592 010
Amortisation of property, plant & equipment ancaingible assets 15 207 282 5 385 259
Result deriving from associates (16 370) (153 611)
Depreciation of assets 2 593 897 2968 771
Gains/losses on property, plant & equipment atahigible assets (21 720) 4167
Provisions and other liabilities (3 733 024) 4 099 369
Change in assets and liabilities deriving from opeating activities: (313 638 045 288 646 594
Fingncial assets held for trading or measurediavéue through (273 733 297 116 900 581
profit and loss
Loans and advances (390 837 892 116 871 321
Available-for-sale financial assets and held-tourig investments 577 038 191 (197 775 837)
Other assets 369 264 (6 882 507)
Liabilities held for trading (18 860 922 (93 443 759)
Owed to credit institutions 50 965 25& 7 666 937
Customer deposits (258 540 074 333310034
Provisions and other liabilities (38 570) 11 999 824
Interest received 52 440 191 50 615 848
Dividends received 2 032 565 3408 051
Interest paid (38 765 952 (33 975 204)
Taxes paid on income (2 150 184) (22 373 213)
Net cash from/used in operating activities (A) -229 421 00& 368 229 725
Disposal of subsidiaries and associates 8.11 12 411 431 (426 636)
Other cash flows from investing activities (65 734 224 0
Acquisition of fixed assets 8.9/8.10 (29 089 637, (5003 142)
Disposal of fixed assets 21720 30 058
Net cash from/used in investing activities (B) (82 390 710 (5 399 720)
Interim dividends paid 0 (50 320 000)
Net cash from/used in financial activities (C) 0 (50 320 000)
Effects of movements in exchange rates on casltastd equivalents 11 398 97& 6 182 744
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivéfemt8 + C) (311811 715 312 510 005
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 566 566 241 247 873 492
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 266 153 501 566 566 24
Composition of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and balances with central banks 8.1 844 246 137 234 165
Current accounts with credit institutions 8.5 224 775 81¢ 85910 678
Term loans to credit institutions 8.5 64 941 212 362 539 414
Overdraft from credit institutions 8.14 (15 416 454 (13 445 079)
Term deposits from credit institutions 8.14 (8 991 318) (5672 937)

A change in the representation has occurred in aosgn to 2015 annual report to include interegideinds

received and interest paid in part (A): Net casimflused in operating activities.

The notes refer to the appendix and are an intpgiralof the consolidated financial statements



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General
1

BANQUE DEGROOF PETERCAM LUXEMBOURG S.A. (formerly BANQUE DEGROOF
LUXEMBOURG S.A." until 31 March 2016) (hereinaftéhe Bank”) was incorporated on 29 January 1987 as
a société anonyme (public limited company) undexembourg law. It was listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange on 29 November 1999 and subsequentlyetbli;m 15 December 2005.

On 1 April 2016, BANQUE DEGROOF LUXEMBOURG S.A. aRETERCAM (LUXEMBOURG)
S.A. merged with retroactive effect from 1 Janua@l6; the new company is called BANQUE DEGROOF
PETERCAM LUXEMBOURG S.A. The merger was legallyesffed through the absorption of all assets and
liabilities of Petercam (Luxembourg) S.A. (the atbenl company) by Banque Degroof Luxembourg S.Ae (th
absorbing company). The Luxembourg Division chésedarrying value method for this transaction, Wwhio
accordance with IFRS, is a business combinatioreundmmon control. The difference between the amoun
paid by Banque Degroof Luxembourg S.A. of € 136 622 and the carrying value of the net assets tafr®am
represented the goodwill recorded in reserves 13 488 213. The Bank also recognised an additiamaunt
of € 17 280 050 in the estimate of the purchasheparity following this merger for three new messes.

As part of the merger, Petercam (Luxembourg) Soid the shares of its subsidiary Petercam Banque
Privée (Suisse) S.A. to Banque Degroof Petercam @A6 February 2016 and sold the shares of fitsidiary
Petercam Institutional Asset Management (Luxembo8té. to Degroof Petercam Asset Services S.A. &n 1
February 2016.

The Bank’s object is to carry out all banking aralisgs activities, in particular deposit-taking and
lending of any kind, as well as all transactionsio§ kind involving transferable securities, wealtthnagement,
fiduciary and financial services and in short ang all commercial and financial transactions whetheolving
movable or immovable assets that facilitate théeaetment of the above-mentioned corporate object.

The Bank and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the dmkourg Division”) are also included in the
consolidation of Banque Degroof Petercam S.A., \itshregistered office at 44 Rue de l'Industrie4@0
Brussels. On 1 October 2015, Banque Degroof S.4.Retercam S.A. merged; the new entity bears theena
Banque Degroof Petercam S.A.

The Luxembourg Division and Banque Degroof PeterSat constitute “the Group”.

The financial statements of the Luxembourg Diviseme available at: www.degroofpetercam.lu. The
financial statements of Banque Degroof Petercam &&available at: www.degroofpetercam.com.

Since 9 December 2005 the Luxembourg Division taséhbranch in Belgium, at 19 Rue Guimard, 1040
Brussels.

The financial statements were approved by the BofRirectors on 10 April 2017.

With a view to harmonising the accounting closirefed at Group level, the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders of 28 September 2015 reddly change the financial year, which ran fromctoBer
to 30 September, such that it now runs from 1 Jgniea31 December of each year. The 2015 finanaatr,
which provides the figures for the previous finahgiear, started on 1 October 2014 and ended @e8&mber
2015, i.e. a financial year with a total duratidri® months.

All the amounts relating to the income statementlie financial year ended 31 December 2015 covered
in these financial statements therefore refer fmancial year of 15 months as against a finangér of 12
months for 2016.



2 Regulatory context

The Luxembourg Division’s consolidated financialtstments have been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)well as the interpretations of these standeffdstive as
at 31 December 2016 and approved within the Europeédon.

In the case of accounting principles not specificedentioned hereinafter, please refer to the IRRS
approved within the European Union.

The accounting principles used in the preparatibrihese consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 are consistéh those applied to the financial year ended 31
December 2015.

3 Changes in accounting policies and methods

The following IFRS (new, revised or amended) angI@- interpretations apply for the first time to the
financial year ended 31 December 2016:

. Amendments to IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipthand IAS 38 "Intangible AssetsClarification of
acceptable methods of amortisation

. Amendments to IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements™: Accmgntfor acquisitions of interests in joint
operations

. Amendments to IAS 27 "Separate Financial Staterfiedse of the equity method in separate financial
statements

. Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financialetents": Disclosure initiative

. Annual Improvements (2012-2014) to IFRS

. Amendments to IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial &tatgs", IFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in other

Entities" and IAS 28 "Investments in Associates doiht Ventures": Investment entities: applying the
consolidation exception
. IFRS 14 "Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

The application of these new provisions had no ri@tenpact on the results or the equity of Banque
Degroof Luxembourg S.A.

Of the standards, amendments to standards angret&tions published by the IASB (International
Accounting Standards Board) and adopted by the ge&am Union as at 31 December 2016, those mentioned
below will come into force in subsequent finangi@ars:

. IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" and subsequent aments, applicable to financial reporting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2018
. IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"pliagble to financial reporting periods

commencing on or after 1 January 2018

The following standards and amendments to standerds not yet been adopted by the European Union
as at 31 December 2016, but the Bank will applytheénen they come into force

. IFRS 16 "Leases"

. Amendments to IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial $tatgs" and IAS 28 "Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures": Sale or contribution of assetsveen an associate and joint venture

. Amendments to IAS 12 "Income taxes": Recognitiodeferred tax assets for unrealised losses

. Amendment to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows": Qisate initiative

. Classification to IFRS 15 "Revenue from contradith wustomers"

. Amendment to IFRS 2 "Share-based payment": Claasifin and valuation of transactions with share-

based payment



. Amendment to IFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts": AppIRE9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance

Contracts
. Annual Improvements (2014-2016) to IFRS
. Amendments to IAS 40 "Investment Property": Trarsfd investment property
. IFRIC 22 "Foreign Currency Transactions and Advatoasideration”

Published in July 2014, IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 &Raial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
IFRS 9 introduces new requirements related to tassification and valuation of financial instrumgnt
including a new model for calculating the impairtgon financial assets (expected loss model), &wd n
provisions relating to general hedge accountingal$b includes provisions relating to the recognitand
measurement of financial instruments of IAS 39.

Banque Degroof Petercam S.A. organised a projedhf®implementation of this standard at the Group
level by collaborating jointly with the Finance aRisk departments. The structure of the projecttivasmain
parts.

The first relates to the implementation and analg$ithe impact of changes resulting from new dete
for classifying and measuring financial instrume#tsthis stage, Banque Degroof Petercam S.A. ka®pned
a study of the overall impact, which may still cgapon the basis of ongoing analyses and testsetkmwthe
Bank does not expect these changes to have a ahatepact on the balance sheet, results or equity.

The second part relates to financial assets sulbgeahpairment and the changes introduced by the
revision of the impairment model, now based on &etpd" loss rather than loss "incurred" as proviftedn
IAS 39. This new model aims to record impairmentsrenquickly and requires substantial information
including historic and current data, and the owtlémr macroeconomic factors. At this stage, Banfegroof
Petercam S.A. is focusing on the definition of 8teucturing choices and collecting information eumtty
available. As regards the quantified impact, ibis early to provide a range that would be repriadime of the
effect of the implementation of the new requirersertiowever, given the enlargement of the scope of
application of impairments, the Bank expects angase in provisions for impairments. In additiosttze Bank
is not currently using the provisions of IAS 39 lmedge accounting, the change to IFRS 9 is consideree-
evaluate the use of hedge accounting.

IFRS 15 will replace IAS 11 "Construction contrdcémd IAS 18 "Revenue from operating activities"
and the corresponding interpretations. This newdsted applies to all contracts concluded with ¢glexcept
those which fall under the scope of the standaetisting to financial instruments, insurance congaand
leases) and introduces a new model for determimihgn to record income from ordinary business, of an
amount. Although the new principles of IFRS 15 niegd to a change in the terms for recognising iterta
income, the Bank does not expect these provismtste a material impact on results, given the @somnain
activities. An analysis of the possible impactésniy performed.

IFRS 16 is intended to replace IAS 17 "Leases". imost important change introduced by IFRS 16 is
that most leases will be recorded in the lessoadarre sheet. For takers, the new standard abanbens
classification of leases into operating leasesranice leases, by treating all of them (with twaeptions) as
finance leases. Many aspects will remain the samehe lessor's accounts. An analysis of the impéchis
standard will be performed in 2017.

The Group does not expect the other texts listeav@lito have a material impact when they will be
applied.



A Judgments and estimates used in the preparation

of consolidated financial statements

Preparing consolidated financial statements in mzwe with IFRS entails making judgments and
estimates. Although the Management of the Luxentp@ivision believes that it has taken into accaalhthe
available information in arriving at these opinioasd estimates, the reality may be different, ameke
differences may have an impact on the consolidiitedcial statements.

These estimates and judgments relate mainly téotloaving subjects:

. determining the fair value of unlisted financiastruments

. determining the useful life and the residual valfismtangible and tangible assets

. estimating the recoverable amount of impaired asset

. assessing the current obligation resulting front pasnts in the context of the recognition of psous
. estimating the value of goodwiill

5 Summary of accounting policies and methods

5.1 Principles of consolidation

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of the Bank and its subsidiarie
Subsidiaries are any companies controlled by thkBize. entities over which the Luxembourg Divisioas the
direct or indirect power to dictate financial angdecational policies in order to derive benefitsnirdhese
activities.

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the full irdégn method, with effect from the date on which
effective control was transferred to the Bank, arelremoved from the scope of consolidation ordtite such
control ends. The Bank’s and the subsidiaries’rfaial statements are drawn up as at the same wkitey
similar accounting methods and using restatemeh&ewnecessary. Intra-group balances, transactimsne
and charges are eliminated.

Participating interests that are not controllingeiests and are recognised in equity are showrrateha
in the consolidated income statement and in theaatated balance sheet.

As an exception to these rules, companies with gligiele interest are excluded from the scope of
consolidation, in accordance with the followingeria implemented by the Group:

. The combined balance sheet total for all fully adigsted non-consolidated companies must be less th
0.5% of the Group's consolidated balance shedt tota

. The combined equity total for all fully consoliddtaon-consolidated companies must be less thanf1% o
the Group's consolidated equity total.

. The total equity of a fully consolidated non-cotidaled company must be less than 0.5% alone of the
Group's consolidated equity total.

. The combined income total for all fully consolidéteon-consolidated companies must be less thanf1% o
the Group's consolidated income total.

. The total income of a fully consolidated non-coidatied company must be less than 0.5% alone of the

Group's consolidated income total.

JOINT VENTURES
Joint ventures are any undertakings over whichBhek has direct or indirect joint control, i.e., no

financial or operational strategic decision candken without the unanimous agreement of the satttigt share
control of the undertaking.



At present the Bank does not have any joint vesiurat should it do so, they will be accountedusing
the equity method with effect from the date theyneounder joint ownership until such time as they a0
longer jointly owned.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are any undertakings over which the Badtcises a significant influence, i.e. it has the
power to participate in decisions on financial amtrating policy although it does not have contmojoint
control over these policies.

If these undertakings exceed the materiality tholekhthey are accounted for using the equity method
with effect from the date on which the Bank firgeecises significant influence over them and with time as
it ceases to have such significant influence.

The materiality threshold is based on an analysigadous criteria, including the share in consatet
equity, the share in consolidated income and theesdf the consolidated balance sheet total.

The associate’s financial statements are drawnsugt ¢he same date, using similar accounting method
and using restatements where necessary.

5.2 Translation of financial statements and transaons in foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are drawnnupuros (EUR), the functional currency of the
Luxembourg Division.

On consolidation, the balance sheets of entitiessetfunctional currency is different from that bét
Luxembourg Division are converted at the excharage on the closing date of the financial year. Hmve
these entities’ income statements and cash floteratents are converted at the average exchangéoratiee
reporting period. Exchange differences resultiognfthese conversions are recognised in equity.

5.2.1 Translation of transactions in foreign curreries
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognidethe@ exchange rate in force on the date of the

transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities are converted atdkchange rate in force on the closing date of the
financial year, generating an exchange differenisielvis recognised in profit and loss.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value are atedet the exchange rate on the closing dateeof th
financial year. The exchange difference resultimgnf this conversion is recognised in equity or iofip and
loss, depending on the accounting treatment oitéine in question.

Other non-monetary items are measured at the ltist@xchange rate, i.e. the exchange rate in force
the date of the transaction.

5.3 Financial instruments

5.3.1 Date of recognition of financial instruments

All derivatives, and all purchases or sales of gd8es under a contract whose terms and conditions
require delivery of the security within a time fragenerally dictated by the regulations or by aragent on
the transaction concerned, are recognised on &éimsdction date. Receivables and deposits are risedgan
settlement date.

5.3.2 Offsetting
A financial asset and a financial liability ares#t if, and only if, the Luxembourg Division hategally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amoant$if it intends to settle the net amount or seathe asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

5.3.3 Financial assets and liabilities held-for-trding

Financial assets and liabilities held for tradimg &nancial assets and liabilities acquired omuassd
mainly with a view to a short-term sale or purchameas part of a portfolio of financial instrumenhat are
managed together and whose profile is that of teslgort-term profit taking.



These assets and liabilities are initially recogdiat their fair value (excluding trading costsogrtised
directly in profit and loss) and are subsequendgneasured at their fair value. Changes in fair evadte
recognised in profit and loss under “Net resulfinancial instruments held for trading”. Interear®ed or paid
on non-derivative instruments is recognised undatefest income and charges”. Dividends receivesl ar
included in “Dividend income”.

All financial instruments having a positive (nega)i replacement value are treated as held-forrtgadi
financial assets (liabilities), with the exceptiohderivatives classed as hedging instruments.v@tves held
for trading are recognised at their fair valuehat beginning of the transaction and are subsequersured at
their fair value. Changes in fair value are recegdiunder “Net result on financial instruments Hefdrading”
and interest earned or paid on derivatives is neised under “Interest income and charge”.

5.3.4 Financial assets and liabilities at fair vale through profit and loss

Financial assets and liabilities are designatedessy at fair value through profit or loss (ther fealue
option) when the financial instrument is initiallgcognised, and in accordance with the followiniteda of
use:

. this designation eliminates or significantly redsi@evaluation or recognition inconsistency (somesim
referred to as an “accounting mismatch”) that waddur if it was not used, or

. a group of financial assets, financial liabilitiesboth is managed and its performance is evaluatea
fair value basis, in accordance with a duly docuemnisk management or investment strategy; or

. the financial instrument contains an embedded dtvie that is not closely related

The choice of the fair value option is irreversiblece the asset or liability has been recognisetien
balance sheet. This category has the same valuailes as those applicable to the “Financial asaats
liabilities held for trading” category.

The same headings as those defined for financedtaisand liabilities held for trading are used for
recognising interest and dividends. However, chamgéair value are recognised under “Net resulfioancial
instruments at fair value through profit and loss”.

5.3.5 Loans and advances
Loans and advances are non-derivative financigtaswith fixed or determinable payments, thatrexe

listed on an active market. Loans and advancemisiadly recognised at fair value, and subsequenteasured
at amortised cost using the effective interest me¢hod, adjusted for any impairment. The effeciiterest rate
is the rate that discounts the future cash outflomisflows over the expected life of the finandi@trument or
over a shorter period, where appropriate, so agbtain the net carrying amount of the financialeasy
liability.

Amortised cost calculated using the effective ieserate takes into account premiums and discanus
transaction fees and costs, which form an integeat of the effective interest rate. Amortisatiosing the
effective interest rate method is recognised irfipamd loss under “Interest income”. Impairmentcamts are
recognised in profit and loss under “Net impairmefiassets”.

Loans and advances mainly comprise interbank asibeer loans and advances.

5.3.6 Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativafinial assets with fixed or determinable payments a
fixed maturities, which the Luxembourg Divisioneéntds and is able to hold until maturity. Held-totuniy
financial assets are initially recognised at tlfiir value and subsequently measured at amortisstdusing the
effective interest rate method, less any allowdacempairment.

Amortisation using the effective interest rate roeths recognised in profit and loss under “Interest
income”. Impairment amounts are recognised in pesfd loss under “Net impairment of assets”.

5.3.7 Available-for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deieatfinancial assets that are designated as being
available for sale or do not fall into one of teramentioned categories. These assets are ipitedbgnized at
their fair value and subsequently remeasured at thie value. Any fluctuations in fair value areaognized
under a specific heading in equity. If these asaetssold or impaired, the cumulative results ofieasurement
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previously recognised in equity are recognised rofipand loss under “Net result of financial assebt
measured at fair value through profit and lossihathe case of impairment under the heading ‘Netaimment
of assets’.

Income from interest-bearing instruments recognissdg the effective interest rate method is inetlid
under “Interest income”. Dividends received arduded in “Dividend income”.

Available-for-sale assets mainly comprise fixedvariable income securities not classed as financial
assets held for trading at fair value through pierfid loss.

5.3.8 Participating interests
Participating interests not classified as “Avai&bir-sale Financial Assets” are valued at acqaisit
cost.

5.3.9 Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities comprise all other fimgal debts, subordinated or otherwise (with theegtion
of derivatives), not classified as held for tradorgas measured at fair value through profit aisd.lo

Other financial liabilities are initially recognideat their fair value, and subsequently at amattisest
using the effective interest rate method. Accrug@rest (including any difference between the mebunt
received and the repayment value) is recognisgdadfit and loss using the effective interest ratthod, under
“Interest expenses”.

5.3.10 Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the price that would be receivedtfiar sale of an asset or paid for the transfer lfality

in a normal transaction between market participantthe main market or the most advantageous mark#te
valuation date. Fair value is determined on theshafsprices quoted on an active market (quotatginen by a
Stock Market, a broker or any other source recaghisy investors). If there is no market, or no reaurices

are available, valuation techniques are used ierai@ estimate the fair value based on the prempitharket
conditions on the valuation date. These techniquake use of as many market data as possible, turren
calculation methods and a whole range of othepfaduch as time value, credit risk and liquidiskr

The fair value estimated using these techniquabkdaefore affected by the data used. The valuation
techniques used include in particular discountesh dlow methods, comparing the market values ofilaim
instruments, option valuation models and other ggiate valuation models.

When first recognised, the fair value of a finahgigtrument is the price of the transaction (ihe value
of the sum paid or received for it), unless anothervalue can be proved by a price on an actiaeket for the
same instrument or using a valuation techniquedssiely on observable market data.

To determine the fair value of financial instrunggrihe Luxembourg Division mainly uses the follogvin
valuation methods:

ACTIVE MARKET

Financial instruments are valued at fair valuedfgnence to prices listed on an active market, vthese
are readily available, taking account of criterigcts as the volume of transactions or recent traiosec
Securities and derivatives listed on organised etarffutures and options) are valued in this manner

Over-the-counter derivatives such as interest sataps, options and foreign exchange contracts are
valued using widely recognised models (discountadhcflows, Black Scholes model, etc.), which use
observable market data.

For valuations that use mid-market prices as treiskfar determining fair value, a price adjustmisnt
applied, for each risk position, to net open pos#iusing the buying or selling price as the cazg Ibe.

NO ACTIVE MARKET
Most derivatives are traded on active marketshdffirice of a transaction on an inactive markes dus

correspond to the fair value of other observaldedactions on this market for the same instrumend ¢the
valuation with an internal model based on observafdrket data, this difference is recognised diréctprofit
and loss.



However, if this difference (commonly known as ‘Dayprofit and loss’) is generated by a valuation
model whose parameters are not all based on oltdemvearket data, it is either recognised in prafit loss on
a staggered basis over the life of the transactmwndeferred until the date on which the instrumant
derecognised. In any case, any unrecognised differés immediately recognised in profit and losghié
parameters that were not originally observabler laecome so, or if the fair value can be determibgd
reference to a price quoted on an active markeblving the same instrument. For all transactioms t
appropriate method for recognising the differeficeugh profit and loss is determined on a casealsg basis.

NO ACTIVE MARKET — EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (UNLISTED SHA RES)
In the absence of any price for a transaction tBcearried out in normal market conditions, thé fa

value of the unlisted shares is estimated usinggmised valuation techniques such as discounte féas,
applying stock market multiples for comparable camips and the net asset value method.

The carrying amount of short-term financial instents corresponds to a reasonable approximation of
their fair value.

5.3.11 Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is defined as a componeataafmposite (hybrid) instrument that includes both

a derivative financial instrument and a non-deiix&ahost contract. An embedded derivative mustdmasated
from the host contract and accounted for as a afiveyif:

. the economic characteristics and risks of the eahb@dierivative are not closely related to thoséhef
host contract
. a separate instrument with the same terms and tammslias the embedded derivative would meet the

definition of a derivative
. the hybrid (composite) instrument is not held fading

This (embedded) derivative is valued at fair vahreugh profit and loss in the same way as a standa
derivative. The host contract is accounted for wa@ided according to the principles governing thiegary to
which it belongs.

Insofar as the separation of the embedded derevagiypermitted (see above), the entire hybrid eahtr
can be designated as a financial asset or liakdlitfair value through profit and loss. Howeverjtiis not
possible to value the embedded derivative sepgrdbe entire hybrid contract must be designatea fasancial
asset or liability at fair value through profit alogs.

5.3.12 Derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset is derecognised when:

. the contractual rights to the cash flows attacletie financial asset expire; or

. the Luxembourg Division has transferred substdnptiall the risks and rewards attaching to the
ownership of this financial asset. If the Bank neittransfers nor retains substantially all th&sriand
rewards attached to the ownership of the finaresaket, this is derecognised if control of the faiain
asset is not kept. Otherwise, the Bank keeps tten(ial asset on the balance sheet to the extdtd of
continuing involvement in this asset.

A financial liability is derecognised if the lialijf has expired, i.e. if the obligation describedthe
contract is cancelled or expires.

5.4 Lease agreements

A finance lease is a lease that transfers subaligrdil of the risks and rewards attached to tvaership
of the asset. An operating lease is any lease mg@eother than a finance lease.

AS LESSEE
For operating leases, the leased asset is notnmseagon the balance sheet and the lease rentalgpay
are recognised through profit and loss on a sttdigé basis over the life of the lease.

For finance leases, the leased asset is capitaisg¢decognised at the lower of its fair value Hrenet
present value of the minimum contractual lease gaysn The asset is subsequently depreciated Usngame



depreciation rules as those applied to assetssohiar nature over the shorter of the duratiorthaf contract
and the asset’s estimated useful life. The relfiteahcial debt is recognised in liabilities as looving.

The financial expense is recognised through pesfit loss over the period covered by the lease axntr
SO as to obtain a constant periodic interest natédhne remaining balance of the liability for eadhripd.

AS LESSOR

Assets leased out under an operating lease areirgedofor in the balance sheet as fixed assets and
depreciated using the same depreciation rulesose thpplied to assets of a similar nature. Leasmtes are
recognised as income on a straight-line basis theelife of the lease.

For finance leases, the net present value of tiénmaim payments, plus the residual value of thetakse
any, is recognised as a receivable and not a®d figset. The financial income from the financedea spread
over the life of the lease based on a chart réfiget constant rate of return on the net outstaniivestment in
the lease.

5.5 Property, plant & equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognised atisitigm cost (including directly attributable exppas),
less accumulated depreciation and any impairmessek The Bank applies the component method od fixe
asset accounting (mainly for buildings) and therdejable amount of an asset is determined aftenaiioh of
its residual value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basir the useful lives of the assets concerned.
The useful lives applied are:

Nature of the fixed asset or component

Useful life
Land Indefinite
Buildings, structures 40 years
Technical installations 10 years
General installations 20 years
Finishings 5to 10 years
IT/telecoms equipment 4 years
Miscellaneous equipment 5 years
Office furniture 10 years
Vehicles 4 years

Land and works of art have an indefinite usefd lind are therefore not depreciated, but can fectub
to impairment losses.

At each financial year-end, where an indicationaof kind exists that a tangible asset might have
suffered impairment, an impairment test (compathng net carrying amount of the asset with its recable
amount) is performed. An impairment loss is recegdiwhen the carrying amount of the asset is hitjtaar its
estimated recoverable amount.

The useful lives and residual amounts of propeamnty equipment are reviewed at each financial yedr-en

5.6 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable hon-mone&sget that has no physical substance. Such anissse
recognised initially at cost if it is consideredtfit will produce future economic benefits andhié acquisition
cost of this asset can be reliably determined.

Intangible assets consist mainly of software apgiims acquired or developed internally as well as
goodwill acquired in the context of business corabons.

Purchased software is amortised on a straightdasss over a four-year period from the time it bees
usable. Software maintenance costs are chargedofid pnd loss as incurred. However, expenditurat th
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improves the quality of the software or helps edtén useful life is added to the initial acquisiticost. The
cost of developing software written in-house are@uised on a straight-line basis over the periodnduwhich
the Luxembourg Division expects to benefit from #sset. Research costs are expensed directlywasddc

Intangible assets are amortised on a straightdass over the period during which the group exptat
benefit from the asset. This useful life does naeed 20 years.

At each financial year-end, where an indicatiorany kind exists that an intangible asset might have
suffered impairment, an impairment test (compathng net carrying amount of the asset with its recable
amount) is performed. An impairment loss is recegdiwhen the carrying amount of the asset is hittzer its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amafuthe intangible asset is estimated on the bakis
changes in assets under management.

Intangible assets are recognised at acquisitionless accrued depreciation and any impairmenetoss
The useful lives and residual amounts of intandibaked assets are reviewed at each financial yedr-e

5.7 Other assets

Other assets basically consist of income receivédtiger than interest), prepaid expenses and sundry
debtors. Also included in this item are amounteireble from employees.

5.8 Impairment of assets

An impairment loss is recognised on an asset datsying amount (net of any depreciation/amoritisgt
is higher than its recoverable amount.

At each balance sheet date, the Luxembourg Divisissesses whether there is any indication (loss-
generating event) that an asset may have lost vellieere such an indication exists, an impairmest g
carried out and, where appropriate, an impairmess lis recognised in profit and loss. Even if thisr@o
objective indication of impairment, such an exaniorais carried out, at least every year on theesdate, in
respect of intangible assets with indefinite ustbals.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Impairment is recognised on financial assets ouggoof financial assets whenever there is objective
evidence of measurable impairment resulting from onmore events occurring since the initial redtgm of
the asset or group of assets and whenever sucigdossating event(s) affect(s) the future estimatesh flows
of this asset or group of assets. The followingdations, among others, are viewed as objectivdeznie of
impairment:

. significant financial difficulties experienced Hyetissuer

. breach of contract such as a default or delayethpat/of interest or principal

. facilities accorded to the borrower for legal ooeomic reasons linked to its financial difficulties

. high probability of bankruptcy or financial resttudng

. disappearance of an active market for this pagicasset (as a result of financial difficulties)

. other observable data linked to a group of asseish as an unfavourable change in the repayment

behaviour of borrowers in the group or an unfavblerachange in a sector of activity that affects the
borrowers in the Group
. major or prolonged decline in the fair value ofeguity instrument below its cost

The analysis of the possible existence of impaitrigefirst undertaken on an individual basis arehton
a collective basis. Collective assessment for ¢aticig impairment is carried out for the Bank’s damgy
activities by grouping counterparties not indivithgampaired in similar portfolios and based on thistorical
data for each portfolio. The method used by thekBsubased on an approach combining probabilitietetault
and loss given default. This method and the assangused are regularly reviewed in order to redamce
differences between estimated losses and actuatibié losses.

Impairment of financial assets recognised at asexiticost corresponds to the difference between thei
carrying amount and the net present value of thienated cash flows, discounted at the original cite
interest rate. If the effect of discounting to NRhegligible, it is not taken into account. Impaént losses are

%



recognised through profit and loss under “Net impaint losses on assets”, with a balancing entrarto
adjustment account with regard to the carrying arhofithe impaired financial assets. If an evefissguent to
the recognition of the impairment indicates that tbss of value no longer exists, or exists onlgtlpathe
previously recognised impairment loss (or the ratg\part of it) is reversed through the “Net imp@nt losses
on assets” heading of profit and loss.

Once an impairment loss has been recognised ossat, subsequent interest income is recognised base
on the interest rate used for discounting the &utash flows to NPV.

The recoverable amount of available-for-sale fin@nassets is generally based on the quoted market
prices or, if these are not available, on projectash flows, discounted to NPV at the current mairkerest
rate for a similar asset. Whenever there is an ctibge indication of impairment, the accumulatedslos
recognised directly in equity is removed from eguiind recognised through profit and loss under “Net
impairment losses on assets”.

If the fair value of a fixed income security on wian impairment loss has been recognised later
appreciates as the result of an event subsequém impairment, the impairment loss is reversedudh profit
and loss (“Net impairment losses on assets”). Haweany subsequent recovery in the fair value oégunty
instrument is recognised directly in equity.

OTHER ASSETS
The recoverable amount of a non-financial ass#tdsgreater of its fair value less selling costd @s

value in use. Fair value less selling costs comadp to the amount that can be realised from tleeofaan asset
under normal market conditions between informed @msenting parties, after deduction of the disbossts.
The value in use of an asset is the net presenée\afl the future cash flows expected to be derfvenh this
asset.

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverabigant of an individual asset, the asset is attatbeal
cash generating unit (CGU) to determine any impanthhosses at this level of aggregation.

An impairment loss is recorded directly throughfiprand loss under “Net impairment losses on assets
If an asset is revalued, the impairment loss &téek as a reduction of the revaluation. The impaitnof a CGU
is allocated so as to reduce the carrying amoutiteofssets of this unit in proportion to the dagyamount of
each of the CGU’s assets.

An impairment loss recognised during a previouarfirial year is reversed if there has been a fabtrira
change in the estimates used for determining tbeverable amount of the asset since an impairnosstwas
last recognised. In such cases, the carrying anmafuhie asset must be increased to its recovesabt®int, but
without exceeding the carrying amount that wouldgehapplied had no such prior reduction been madts to
value, i.e. after applying the normal depreciatiommortisation rules.

5.9 Provisions

A provision is recognised when:

. the Luxembourg Division has a present legal or tansve obligation resulting from a past event
. it is probable that an outflow of resources willieressary to settle the obligation
. the amount of the obligation can be reliably estada

If the effect of the time value of money is matktiae provision is recognised at its net presahie.

5.10 Taxation

CURRENT TAXATION
Current tax assets and liabilities correspond &amounts actually payable or recoverable, deteunin

on the basis of the prevailing tax regulationshat financial year-end, as well as to tax adjustsx@made in
previous financial years.



DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax is recognised whenever a temporafgrdifice exists between the tax value of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amount. Deferred taxrecognised using the liability method, whicmsists of
calculating, at each reporting date, deferred tssell on the current tax rates or the rates thbprewvail (where
known) at the time that the temporary differenaagrse.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for allable temporary differences, with the exceptiorhose:

. linked to the initial recognition of an asset dradility in a transaction that is not a businesmbination
and that affects neither the accounting profitthertaxable profit; or
. associated with investments in subsidiaries, aatexiand joint ventures to the extent that thentinaf

the reversal of the temporary difference can berobed and it is probable that the temporary défece
will notreverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respeck tafkadleductible temporary differences, tax lossasied
forward and unused tax credits to the extent thét probable that a future taxable profit will beailable
against which the differences can be utilised, pixadere the deductible temporary difference:

. is generated by the recognition of an asset alality in a transaction that is not a business luiotion
and that affects neither the accounting profitthertaxable profit; or
. relates to investments in subsidiaries, assocatdsjoint ventures to the extent that this diffeemill

not reverse in the foreseeable future

Current taxes payable and deferred taxes are rimmhthrough profit and loss as tax charges ommo
except where they are linked to items recognisextjirity (fair value revaluation of available-folesassets), in
which case they are initially recognised in eqaitygl subsequently recognised in profit and losseasame time
as the realised capital gains or losses.

5.11 Employee benefits

In compliance with national regulations and praxgién the sector, the pension scheme in placeein th
Luxembourg Division is a defined contribution gromgurance scheme. There are a few rare exceptichge
form of defined benefits schemes in Luxembourgulteg from the transitional arrangements accebigdhe
Social Security General Inspectorate when the wesmbrought into conformity with the 1998 legisbati

For both the defined contributions system and #meaining cases of defined benefits, the Luxembourg
Division pays the insurer the amounts calculateddoordance with the regulations at the beginningach
financial year. These premiums are recognised psrse in the financial year in question.

The results relating to the profit sharing inceatplans put in place in the Luxembourg Division are
recognised in profit and loss with equity as thenter-entry.

5.12 Other liabilities

Other liabilities include in particular dividendsiy@mble, charges payable (excluding interest), deder
income and other debts.

5.13 Interest income and charges

Interest income and charges are recognised thrpugfit and loss on all interest-bearing instruments
using the effective interest method. The effeciiterest rate is the rate that discounts the futash flows over
the life of the financial instrument, or such skoperiod as may be appropriate, so as to obtaMPAhequal to
the net carrying amount of the instrument. Thewat®on of this rate includes all related fees anthmissions
paid or received, transaction costs and premiundismounts. Transaction costs are incremental absgstly
linked to the acquisition, issue or sale of a firiahinstrument.

Once an interest-bearing financial asset has begternvdown following an impairment, interest incem
continues to be recognised at the rate used towlisdhe future cash flows to NPV in order to deiiee the
recoverable amount.



Interest charges and income in respect of derieativeld for trading are recognised under this same
heading.

Accrued interest is recognised in the balance sinetite same account as the corresponding financial
asset or liability.

5.14 Dividends

Dividends are recognised once the shareholdets tigreceive payment has been established.

5.15 Fees and commissions

The Luxembourg Division recognises fees and comamissreceived in respect of the various services
rendered to its clients as income. The method ocbwatting for these fees and commissions dependsen
nature of the services.

Fees for services provided over a specified pesiedrecognised as and when the service is rendared,
on a straight-line basis over the duration of tee-denerating transaction. This applies to manageme
administration, financial services, custody anceosgervice fees.

Fees linked to the performance of important aatshsas fees for intermediation services, placement,
performance fees and brokerage commissions, aeerddfand recognised at the time the act is pegdrm

5.16 Gains and losses on revaluation or disposalfaiancial instruments

Results of trading transactions include all gaind fsses from changes in the fair value of finalnci
assets and liabilities held for trading.

(Un)realised gains and losses (excluding accruestast and dividends) on financial instrumentsaat f
value through profit and loss are recognised irréivaluation results relating to these instruments.

Gains and losses on the sale or disposal of fiahimdgtruments not measured at fair value througifitp
and loss or held for trading are recognised unblet fesult on financial instruments not measurefdiatvalue
through profit or loss”.

6 Risk management

6.1 Organisation of risk management

The risk management strategy is determined by tierdBof Directors and reflects the strategy defined
for the whole Group by the Board of Directors & fiarent company, Banque Degroof Petercam S.A.

The Banque Degroof Petercam Luxembourg S.A. ManagenCommittee is responsible for its
application throughout the Group. Within this frameek it regularly assesses the level of risks taked
reviews all position limits on an annual basis. TWenagement Committee of the Bank is responsiblheo
parent company and the Board of Directors for dpglyhis strategy by implementing a risk managenpelity
at local level and at the level of its subsidiaries

In order to implement its risk management polityy Management Committee of the Bank has delegated
some of its responsibilities to committees on whicé Bank. The committees that concern Banque @égro
Petercam Luxembourg S.A. are:

. the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALMAGvhich is responsible for managing the
Group’s balance sheet and off-balance sheet aasetdiabilities, in order to generate a stable and
adequate financial margin within acceptable rigkits. This committee also manages the consolidated
liquidity risk



. the “Limits” Committee, which is responsible at @polevel for granting new limits for all types of
products to banking and broking counterpartieslsid reviews existing limits on a regular basis

Day-to-day risk management and control of comphkawith limits is also carried out by the Bank Risk
Management department. The department monitorglitgumarket and counterparty risks, wealth mamagyet
risks and operational risks.

At the Bank’s request, the CSSF (Commission de eéllamce du Secteur Financier, the Luxembourg
financial supervisor) had approved the total exémnpif the risks on the Banque Degroof Petercam Sraup
from the calculation of major risk limits, in acdance with part XVI, point 24 of Circular 06/273asended.

Under the new prudential requirements set out iguReion (EU) 575/2013, this exemption remains
valid by virtue of Article 493, paragraph 3 poinbfcsaid Regulation and CSSF Regulation 14-01 k0.

6.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Group’s being Wbia to meet its financial commitments at due date a
reasonable cost.

This risk is managed at the consolidated levelhgyALMAC, on a monthly basis, while the Bank has
delegated day-to-day management to the dealing toeasury department, under the supervision ofRis&
Management department.

The Luxembourg Division applies a prudent stratemyash management. The Luxembourg Division
mainly places its cash with the Banque Centraléukembourg and in a portfolio of highly liquid banthat
can be realised at any time through sale or repselagreements. In the case of non-sovereign btmals,
Luxembourg Division applies rigorous selection enit in terms of rating and liquidity, and imposes
diversification among issuers in order to reducecentration risk as much as possible. In this wapm ensure
the liquidity of these portfolios, either via sat@svia bi- or tripartite repo programs.

The Luxembourg Division requires monetary resert@sbe kept with the Banque Centrale du
Luxembourg and/or in an amount of unencumberedemwly liquid bonds (‘extremely high quality assets’
within the meaning of Basel Ill) in order to hau#ficient day-to-day liquidity to meet any withdrais. The
minimum amount for the 2014/15 financial year weisag €225 million.

In accordance with CSSF Circular 09/403, which neguthe application of stress tests, the control
exercised by the Risk Management department foousdlree scenarios: ongoing management, management
in the event of a generalised liquidity crisis ire tmarket, and management in the event of a lityuadisis
specific to the Luxembourg Division. Cash flows e sufficient to enable the Luxembourg Divisioncbpe
with each of these three scenarios, which are mi@dtrigorously on a daily basis.

The Luxembourg Division has put in place a liquyiditanagement policy linked to the crisis scenarios
referred to above. This provides, in the event gémaeralised liquidity crisis, for the possibiliy raising cash
immediately through repo transactions on all boindthe Bank’s portfolio. In the event of a liquiglitrisis
specific to the Bank, the policy provides for themediate liquidation of the bond portfolio and loé tportfolio
of protected equities within five days.

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) introduced undiee Basel Ill agreements by the CRR/CRD IV
package stood at 213% as of 31 December 2016 (205586) and demonstrates the Bank'’s good liquigitel.

Another obligation imposed by the CRR/CRD IV packag the Luxembourg Division is the monitoring
of its encumbered and unencumbered assets. Eachinaiigothe median value of the quarterly data far t
previous twelve months.

It is important to note that the Bank has no cosddsend program. Its encumbered assets are mainly
linked to its activities in the repo market or tulateral exchanged to cover exposures to derigatistruments.
In this context, the collateral pledged resultstipdrom the collateral received by other countetiga with
which the Bank is active in the derivatives market.



As of 31 December 2016, Luxembourg Division’s enbamed assets concerned only amounts given as

collateral in the context of derivative transactioihe following charts breaks down the assetsrdoap to
whether or not they are encumbered:

(median value in EUR)

Carrying Carrying
amount of Fair value of amount of Fair value of
encumbered encumbered unencumbered unencumbered
31.12.2016 assets assets assets assets
Assets of the Bank 562 928 707 N/A 2 075 185 05¢ N/A
Equity instruments 0 0 37 033 015 37 033 013
Debt instruments 454 926 60¢ 455 560 14¢ 1121748 67¢ 1122871 209
Other assets 0 0 206 599 47( 0
Carrying Carrying
amount of Fair value of amount of Fair value of
encumbered encumbered unencumbered unencumbered
31.12.2015 assets assets assets assets
Assets of the Bank 709 961 93¢ N/A 2 130 315 17( N/A
Equity instruments 0 0 42 120 71€ 42 120 716
Debt instruments 602 860 431 603 747 18- 773 052 92¢ 769 512 931
Other assets 0 0 220 008 961 0

The guarantees received by the Luxembourg Divisi@nbroken down in the following chart (median
value in euros) depending on whether or not theyeacumbered or likely to be so:

(median value in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.201€ 31.12.201F 31.12.2015

Fair value of Fair value of

Fair value of collateral Fair value of collateral

encumbered received encumbered received

collateral available for collateral available for

received pledging received pledging
Collateral received by reporting institution 489 005 82¢ 771 113 695
Equity instruments 0 0
Debt instruments 489 005 82& 771 113 695

Other collateral received 0 0

Encumbered collateral is received in the contextefivative transactions, and bonds available to be
encumbered were obtained in the context of rep#etions.

The carrying amount of liabilities likely to entaitlditional charges encumbering the assets andthat
the associated encumberasisets and collateral are shown in the followirgricfmedian value in euros):

(median value in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.201¢ 31.12.201¢t 31.12.2015
Corresponding Encumbered Corresponding Encumbered

liabilities, other assets liabilities, other assets
liabilities or collateral liabilities or collateral
securities lent received securities lent received
Carrying amount of selected 525188101 562928707 56512799 764 851 351
financial liabilities

These assets, liabilities and guarantees arenkéidi to derivative transactions.

The corrected liquidity gap is always calculatefitg account of the ability to realise the bond
portfolios.



The following charts detail respectively the ligitydgaps based on contractual cash flows (known or
estimated) and not discounted to NPV for finanagsets and liabilities (in euros):

(in EUR)
From three
Up to three months to  From one to Over five
31.12.2016 Current months one year five years years Total
Financial assets
Loans and advances to credit
C
institutions 854 241 69¢ 64 951 954 0 0 0 919193653
Leanis eine SalyEness o 60885175 136224214 120165867 35017618 21173894 373 466 768
customers
Bonds and other fixed income 0 32447976 24516491 75921397¢ 200003 70 1 236 830 575
securitied
Derivatives 964 183 3 133902 12¢ 491 934 501 30279 612 4094 805 3661175 229

Undrawn credit lines

Total assets

121 072 28¢ 0 0 0 0
1037 483 12¢ 3 367 526 27 857 265 28¢ 824 511 20¢

121 072 289
225272 401 6 311 768 514

Financial liabilities

Deposits from credit institution: 81917 021 8 975132 35 026 0 0 90 927 179
Customer deposits 2082750416 12539533C 3084227C 1873097 0 2240861 124
Derivatives 953 428 3164 861 04: 46527626C 29313372 3500895 3 663 904 998
Guarantees issued 0 28 797 282 0 0 0 28 797 282
Total liabilities 2 165620 867 3328 028 79¢ 496 153 55¢ 31186 46 3500895 6 024 490 58
Liquidity gap (1128457521 39527476 36111173C 793324 74C 22177150¢ 287 277 931
g;fﬁfc;"%fzrepo capacity of bonc 4 549 437 g1 0 (67120449 (948028 981 (234 288 184 0
Corrected liquidity gap 120980 09 39527 476 293991 281 (154 704 241 (12516 678 287 277 931
From three

Up to three months to  From one to Over five
31.12.2015 Current months one year five years years Total
Financial assets
Loans and advances to credit
i etitutions 242 248 67€ 492702931 50040 113 - ] 784 991 720
Licatus sl clyetiess i 82505821 186562917 77420518 49683151 35299 285 431 471 692
customers
Sggfjﬁggd i B e 144399 41485573 409 974 275 770627 291 275 445901 1 497 677 439
Derivatives 25 444 033 3 686 847 85¢ 872488055 83725773 4811268 4673316 985
Undrawn credit lines 49 689 812 - - - - 49 689 812

Total assets

Financial liabilities

400 032 741

4 407 599 277 1 409 922 961

904 036 21t 315556 454 7 437 147 644

Deposits from credit institution: 28 977 323 5712 957 - - - 34 690 280
Customer deposits 2048099 20¢ 363777 12¢ 86823 371 - 1830435 2500530136
Derivatives 25598 420 3587 287 19: 877 458 80¢ 92 792 273 4713 059 4 587 849 754
Guarantees issued 40933 775 - - - 40933 775

Total liabilities 2102 674 947 3997 711 051 964 282 18C 92 792 273 6 543 494 7 164 003 944
Liquidity gap (1702642206 409888 22¢ 445640781 81124394z 30901296C 273143703
Egﬁf;"‘(’)‘;repo capacity of bONC 4 476 749 40 (28 856 841) (396 994 541 (768 327 152 (282 570 870 0
Corrected liquidity gap (225892 802, 381 031 38t 48 646 24C 42 916 79C 26442 09C 273143703
Yincludes cash and balances with the central bank.
2The majority of the euro-denominated bonds incluidetiis chart are considered to be rapidly reblisa&ia repurchase agreements.
(0 4



6.3 Market risk

6.3.1 Policy
Market risks are the risks of an adverse developroémmarket factors (interest rates, equity prices,
exchange rates, etc.) affecting the value of posstiaken by the Luxembourg Division for its owc@mt.

Treasury, foreign exchange and bond trading aigtésziare monitored daily using indicators such as
Value-at-Risk (VaR), interest rate sensitivity, sa@go analyses, and, more simply, nominal volumes.

These activities are compared with limits set by Management Committee within the framework
dictated by the parent company and are charadadebig@®utstandings that are of limited significamekative to
equity.

In the context of Basel lll, the calculation methcitbsen is based on the impact of a 200 basis point
movement in interest rates for interest rate risét historical VaR (which measures the maximum logk a
95% confidence interval and a one-day holding pirfor foreign exchange risk. These indicatorswsed to
calculate economic capital for interest-rate andifm exchange-related market risks.

6.3.2 Interest rate risk
This is the financial risk resulting from the impa¢ a change in interest rates on the interesgmamnd
on the fair value of fixed income instruments.

This risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Al®MAsing a standard defined in terms of duration
gap. This standard has been constructed on the dfakie maximum acceptable loss in the eventrtdias rise
by 1%, as allocated by the Management CommitteeBarique Degroof Petercam S.A. to the Group’s
transformation activity and shared between BrussetsLuxembourg. This includes all balance sheetstand
therefore all cash positions.

The limit on the maximum acceptable amount of lsa result of a 1% movement in interest ratestis s
at €8 million. This translates into an operatingitiin VBP (Value per Basis Point) of €105 000 whic
encompasses all the interest rate positions amistored daily. This latter limit was reviewed amdluced to
€100 000 at the beginning of October 2015.

The following chart shows the key figures relatinghe exposure to interest rate risk:

(VBP in EUR)
2016 31.12.201¢ Mean Minimum Maximum
Interest rate risk VBP 58 823 74 833 48 155 97 198
2015 31.12.201¢ Mean Minimum Maximum
Interest rate risk VBP 95 927 90 930 78 624 112 043

6.3.3 Foreign Exchange risk
This basically concerns the hedging and optimigatibthe foreign exchange risk generated by all the
Bank’s departments. Trading is forbidden.

The indicators used to monitor daily foreign exdanisk are:

. limits set in terms of nominal amounts;
. historical VaR.

The following chart shows the key figures relatinghe exposure to currency risk:

(total currency

position in
EUR)
2016 31.12.201¢€ Mean Minimum Maximum
Exchange risk Nominal 914 352 507 350 168 985 1453 538
2015 31.12.201¢t Mean Minimum Maximum
Exchange risk Nominal 530 985 466 237 181 822 1374 533
The limits concerning exchange risk have been ksitegtol in nominal values.
(0 /4



Overnight limits in absolute values:

Weekdays Weekends
Commonly traded currencies (limit per currency) 2 000 00C 1 000 000
Exotic currencies (limit per currency) 250 000 250 000
Total all currencies 3 000 00C 2 000 000

The weekday limits were revised downwards durirggréporting period.

6.4 Credit risk

6.4.1 Description
Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from ardfessional, institutional, corporate, private,.petc
counterparty failing to meet its contractual obligas on time. This risk is monitored on a dailgisa

As regards counterparty limits, exposure is catedlan line with changes in market value, plus dd-a
on reflecting the risk of future changes in thituea This exposure is then compared with the limiented by
the Limits Committee.

6.4.2 Management of credit risk

The amount of the Luxembourg Division’s exposurenedit risk is represented by the carrying amount,
net of value corrections, of the assets, guararisse®d and unutilised confirmed credit lines gednto its
clients. The amount of the Luxembourg Division’pesure to credit risk on derivative financial instents is
represented by their global replacement cost. Baae the credit risk on these transactions, thesinibourg
Division has signed 23 CSA (Credit Support Annegdeaments.

The charts that follow show the Bank’s exposurerédlit risk, calculated according to Basel Il mile

(in EUR)

Net value Final value at Risk weighted

31.12.2016 at risk risk* asset$
Total 2 161 144 83: 1 868 298 73: 384 437 48(
Loans and advances to credit institutions 326 853 94¢ 324 272 91z 64 854 582
Loans and advances to customers 372 850 50¢ 237 954 601 211 946 816
Bonds and other fixed income securities 1212 166 84: 1212 166 84: 29 395 457

Public sector issuers 414 420 340 414 420 340 -

Other issuers 797 746 501 797 746 501 29 395 457
Shares and other variable income securities 30 496 977 30 496 977 30 496 977
Contingent liabilities and commitments 147 869 571 9412 282 9 396 366
Derivatives held for trading - Unlisted 70 906 98¢ 53995 11¢ 38 347 282

Total derivatives held for trading - Unlisted 70 906 98¢ 53 995 11¢ 38 347 284

Net value Final value at Risk weighted

31.12.2015 at risk risk* asset$
Total 2 789 257 197 2 199 023 88" 413 778 65
Loans and advances to credit institutions 647 715 022 354 728 72¢ 67 124 890
Loans and advances to customers 439 816 76¢ 234 735 42¢ 222 968 886
Bonds and other fixed income securities 1500 418 15¢ 1500 418 15¢ 32 891 335

Public sector issuers 698 343 909 698 343909 -

Other issuers 802 074 245 802 074 245 32891 335
Shares and other variable income securities 42 030 82¢ 42 030 82¢ 42 200 759
Contingent liabilities and commitments 90 623 587 11 107 82¢ 11 351 571
Derivatives held for trading - Unlisted 68 652 844 56 002 92t 37 241 216

Total derivatives held for trading - Unlisted 68 652 844 56 002 92t 37 241 214
1 The final value at risk reflects the techniquegdusemitigate credit risk (mainly guarantees) amel ff-balance sheet conversion factor.

2The amount of risk weighted assets correspondsetiirial value at risk multiplied by the weightingsociated with the counterparty for each
exposure.



A distinction can be made among three categoriesedfit in the Bank:
a) Limits granted to banking counterparties
The granting of interbank limits is centralised_akembourg Division level and is based on the gngnt

and review of limits by the Limits Committee, whialeets monthly bringing together the responsiblsqres
from Brussels and Luxembourg.

b) Loans granted to clients for non-banking counteparties

The Luxembourg Division’s appetite for credit rigk very low. The Luxembourg Division will only
consider lending to private individuals up to tlygligalent amount of appropriate collateral. Créaldilities for
companies are limited to first rate borrowers.

Non-performing and non-impaired loans consist gadélloans and advances granted to clients whieh ar
either overdue or cancelled. The amounts shownhe dhart below (in euros) correspond to amounts
outstanding in the case of overdue receivablebefull amount of the loan (principal and interastihe case
of cancelled loans; the duration is the number afsdsince first unpaid due date or termination date
respectively:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.201€ 31.12.201¢t 31.12.2015
Loans Guaranteeg Loans Guarantees
Less than three months 9 507 315 8 904 449 565 597 111 865
From three months to one year 20 009 202 546 844 61679
From one year to five years 371 298 350 000 318 219 240 348
Over five years - - 101 447 -
Total non-performing loans 9 898 622 9 254 651 1532 107 413 892

1 The amount of guarantees received is limited tatheunt of the loans covered. The guarantees iaaash, securities and mortgages.

A loan, of which the late payment of € 8 011 86@lem"Less than three months" as of 31 December
2016, was adjusted during the first quarter of 2017

As of 31 December 2016, restructured loans, amogrit € 9 078 049 (2015: € 10 248 196), concerned
the same loans as of 31 December 2015; they asnea€s to customers only, the due dates of which haen
renegotiated following borrowers’ difficulties inohouring their commitments on time. As of 31 Decemb
2016, impairments amounting to € 421 108 (2015). ®d¥e recognised on these loans.

¢) The Bank’s investment portfolio
The Bank's overall bond portfolio was completelyiegred and is now divided between two portfolios

corresponding to two main categories. The firsegaty includes public sector bonds, i.e. soverégners,
government agencies, public-guaranteed bonds amdstiesued by supranational issuers. The secordarst
includes private sector bonds which in this casgn®st exclusively made up of covered bonds. Aimar of
EUR 425 million was granted for the second category

As at 31 December 2016, the "public sector" pddfstood at € 956 million (2015: € 1 149.5 million)
The average rating of this portfolio is AA+ andiaBuers have Investment Grade rating.

As for the "private sector” portfolio composed atnexclusively of covered bonds, the total asdetsds
at € 282.5 million at 31 December 2016 (2015: €.@%8illion). The average rating is AAA and all iessl have
Investment Grade rating.

6.4.3 Geographical exposure
In geographical terms, the Luxembourg Division n@sexposure to emerging countries and focuses

basically on the European Union and certain OECInt@s. The list of authorised countries is revdéedvon a
regular basis.



The following chart shows the geographical disttitou of the portfolios of state-guaranteed bonds.

Geographical distribution of countries with state-giaranteed bonds (in %)
Supranational institutions 34.85%
Germany 24.77%
France 12.28%
Belgium 11.99%
Spain 6.61%
Italy 5.91%
Denmark 1.77%
Austria 1.52%
Luxembourg 0.31%

Total 100.00%

The following chart shows the geographical distiiu of “private sector” portfolio bonds.

Geographical distribution of countries of origin of bank bonds (in %)
Belgium 53.10%
France 37.70%
Luxembourg 5.31%
Germany 3.19%
New Zealand 0.71%

Total 100.00%

6.5 Wealth management risk

Wealth management risk is the financial risk reésgltfrom possible inconsistencies or excessive risk
taking in the asset management strategies puraubd Luxembourg Division as a whole.

This risk is monitored within each entity by thespective control departments, and also at the
consolidated level, using aggregated data. Theralsrfocus on compliance with the management caimg
set by both the client and the Group’s Managemeami@ittee (in particular in terms of diversificatjoequity
ratio and authorised investment products) as vegtlexformance monitoring.

The Group’s Risk Management department ensures thigatcontrols and investment principles are
consistent among the various subsidiaries.

6.6 Return on assets

Return on the bank’s assets is as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Total assets 2 716 548 64 2 958 168 850
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 47 723 172 60 618 594
Return on Assets 1.76% 2.05%

6.7 Capital management

The main objective of the Bank’s capital manageniemnd ensure that the Luxembourg Division meets
regulatory requirements and maintains a level pftaksation consistent with the level of activapd the risks

incurred.



Regulatory own funds calculated under the CRR/CRDpackage as of 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015 (in euros) were as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Tier 1 own funds 208 784 22¢ 234 451 127
Total own funds 208 784 22¢ 234 451 12
Own funds requirements 57 852 884 62 710 586
Ratio 28.87% 29.91%

Once a year, the Luxembourg Division produces artepn the ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy
Process) in accordance with the regulations inefoftis report is approved by the Bank’s Board oB€ors
and its Management Committee. It certifies the adey of the Bank’s own funds in relation to theksis
incurred, even in crisis scenarios.

7 Scope of consolidation

31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Name and location of the office Proportion of share capital held
Parent company:
Banque Degroof Petercam Luxembourg S.A. - Luxembougr

Fully consolidated subsidiaries:

D.S. Lux S.A. - Luxembourg 100.00% 100.00%
Degroof Petercam Asset Services S.A., DPAS - Luxamip 99.95% 99.95%
Promotion Partners S.A. - Luxembourg 100.00% 100.00%
Degroof Asset Management (HK) Limited - Hong Kong 91.84% 90.00%
Investment Company of Luxembourg S.A., ICL - Luxemiy 100.00% 100.00%
Overseas Investments Company S.A. - Luxembourg 100.00% 100.00%
Invest House S.A. - Luxembourg 100.00% 100.00%
Heaven Services S.A. - Luxembourg 100.00% 100.00%
3P (L) S.a.r.l. 100.00%

Landolt & Cie S.A. - Switzerland 25.00%
Promotion 777 S.A - Luxembourg 34.00% 34.00%
Stairway To Heaven S.A. - Luxembourg 48.00% 48.00%
Seniorenresidenz Berdorf S.A. - Luxembourg 50.00% 50.00%
Le Cloitre S.A.- Luxembourg 33.60% 33.60%

On 27 May 2014, a subsidiary company, Degroof Astatagement (HK) Limited, was formed in Hong
Kong. The Bank held 90% of this company’s capiféle Bank participated in a first capital increaseided on
15 April 2015 following two others on 22 March 2046d 14 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, the
Bank holds 91.84% (2015: 90%) of Degroof Asset Mgmaent (HK) Limited capital;

On 10 May 2016, Landolt & Cie S.A. was sold withaftecting the profit and loss account. The sale
price was transferred on 15 July 2015, the datelbiair& Cie S.A. effectively left the Luxembourg Déion's
scope of consolidation

The Bank took part in the capital increase of Mus S.A. on 10 December 2014 and holds 100% of this
company following the acquisition of the last sh@greement signed 7 January 2015).



As at 31 December 2015, the Bank also incorpoitdesal/en Services S.A. into its consolidation scope.

On 1 April 2016, Degroof Gestion InstitutionnelleLuxembourg S.A. - Luxembourg and Petercam

Institutional Asset Management (Luxembourg) S.Arged with retroactive effect from 1 January 201& t
new company is called Degroof Petercam Asset SEs\ECA.

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank included the \folilg associates in its consolidation scope:

Promotion 777 S.A., Stairway To Heaven S.A., Samiogsidenz Berdorf S.A. and Le Cloitre S.A., whigh
held directly by Stairway To Heaven S.A. and indileby the Bank.

3P(L) SARL, formerly a subsidiary of Petercam (Lonmmurg) S.A., was incorporated into the Bank's

portfolio during the merger for EUR 12 500.

As at 31 December 2016, a limited number of congsmhad not been consolidated.

These companies are not included in the scoperfatidation on the basis of the following criteria:

the size of equity

the non-material impact on the consolidated balaheet

no activity was performed in the company

company in liquidation which has no longer any eife business

(or very little) on the consolidated balance sheet

limited business and consolidation (after cancgliimtra-group operations) would not have any impact

Thanks to cash deposits in these books, the Baauls lvery little risk. Cash flows are also limiteglthe

activity of these companies.

All the conditions listed in the consolidation priples were complied with.

8 Notes to the balance sheet

8.1 Cash and sight accounts with central banks

The breakdown of “Cash and sight balances withraebanks” is as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
Cash 842 711 851 051
Balances with central banks - Regulatory reserves 591 484 05t 0
Balances with central banks other than regulatesgnves 1535 136 383 114
Total 592 328 301 137 234 164

As of 31 December 2015, the Luxembourg Division hafilled its obligations in terms of “regulatory

reserves” with Banque Centrale du Luxembourg.

The amounts included in cash and cash equivaleatssafollows:

(in EUR)
Notes 31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Cash 8.1 842 711 851 051
Balances with central banks other than regulatesgnves 8.1 1535 136 383 114
Current accounts with credit institutions 8.5 224 775 81¢ 85910 678
Term loans with credit institutions 8.5 6494121z 362539414
Overdrafts from credit institutions 8.14 (15416 454, (13 445 079)
Term deposits from credit institutions 8.14 (8 991 318) (5672 937)
Total 266 153501 566 566 24

1The amounts shown in the chart are from the bataseeout in the notes indicated.



The total amount of cash and cash equivalentsdeslu

. cash

. balances with central banks, except amounts of atangreserves

. debit and credit sight balances with credit insititus, excluding vostro accounts and balances which
guarantee repurchase/reverse repurchase transagtiderivative transactions

. loans and deposits with credit institutions, thigahduration of which is less than three months

The Bank changed the method for determining theposition of cash and cash equivalents to exclude
vostro accounts and include cash equivalents biities.

The total impact of this change on the 2015 balasd® (38 228 138) and € (61 561 193) on the 2016
balance.

8.2 Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading consist of tHieWadng types:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Derivatives held for trading 57 200 781 64 434 296
Equity instruments 0 410 582
Units & shares in Collective Investment Services 410 582
Debt instruments 1 955 465 10 860 903
Public sector paper and government bonds 0 1469 329
Bonds of other issuers 1 955 465 9391574
Accrued interest 158 112 1314914
Total assets held for trading 59 314 35¢ 77 020 695
(0 4



The charts below show breakdowns of the derivativdg for trading:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.201€ 31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
Carrying Notional Carrying Notional
amount value amount value
Exchange derivatives 35130 39 1886411 12¢ 43518 951 2 492 546 721
Not listed
Forward contracts 26 622 155 1 288 005 30 26 125771 1376843777
Swap contracts 8476964 560 559 73: 16 941 72z 851713 446
Options acquired 31274 6 820 368 451 457 248 419 760
Organised market
Futures 0 31025 721 0 15 569 738
Interest rate derivatives 13948 465 1179 129 71: 8681870 944 654 511
Not listed
Swap contracts 13932 08C 1 005 695 037 5268 216 771 399 824
Options acquired 0 0 30 3 000 000
Organised market
Options acquired 16 383 9566 711 3413624 61 944 372
Futures 0 163 867 96& 0 108 310 315
Equity derivatives 8121925 648 949 21¢ 12 233 475 618 102 867
Not listed
Options acquired 825 920 24 571 07¢ 5613 250 48 606 835
Organised market
Options acquired 7 296 005 82 665 011 6 620225 164 564 778
Futures 0 541 713 12¢€ 0 404 931 254
Commodity derivatives 0 0 0 0
Organised market
Futures 0 0 0 0

Total derivatives held for trading

57 200 781 3 714 490 05¢

64 434 29€ 4 055 304 099

Please refer to note 8.20 for a breakdown of faliues (excluding accrued interest), according tethdr
they are derived from a published market price singl a valuation technique. The amounts of bondtelun

repos or lent are set out in note 8.21.

8.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit ad loss

Equity investments are designated on their acduisttate at fair value through profit and losshigy are
hedged by an option structure, in accordance witiskamanagement strategy. This designation elitasjeor
significantly reduces, any accounting mismatch thigtht otherwise occur as a result.

At the beginning of 2009, interbank deposit agfivitas limited for reasons of liquidity risk and dite
risk. A new bond portfolio was created to compemdar this. Most of the securities in this portfolare
government issuances or securities issued by fiabinstitutions with a state guarantee or covdredds.

This portfolio is hedged using interest rate swapd has been designated at fair value throught @nodi
loss to avoid a mismatch resulting from differealuation methods.



Financial assets designated at fair value througfitand loss break down as follows:

(in EUR)

31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015

Equity instruments 28 828 59C 35 146 000
Equities 28 828 59C 35 146 000
Debt instruments 873 07332¢ 576473 086
Public sector paper and government bonds 264 409 92C 204 035 211
Bonds of other issuers 608 663 40¢ 372 437 875
Accrued interest 3767 428 3 740 288

Total financial assets at fair value through profitand loss

Please refer to note 8.20 for a breakdown of falues according to whether they are derived from a

published market price or using a valuation techaiq

The amounts of bonds under repos or lent are $éb owote 8.21.

8.4 Available-for-sale financial assets

905 669 34¢

615 359 374

Available-for-sale financial assets, which compritgted and unlisted fixed or variable income

transferable securities, are shown below brokemdmtype:

(in EUR)

31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015

Equity instruments 1 668 387 6 338 020
Equities 1 595 560 480 852
Units & shares in CIS 72 827 5857 168
Debt instruments 253725587 824 102 284
Public sector paper and government bonds 80 24168 417 565 381
Bonds of other issuers 173 335004 406 388 187
Other fixed income instruments 1489 000 148 716
Accrued interest 515161 3193 664
Total available-for-sale financial assets 255909 13t 833 633 964

Available-for-sale financial assets are recogniaedair value. A breakdown of fair values (excluglin
accrued interest), according to whether they arevet from a published market price or using a a&tan
technique, is given in note 8.20.

Impairment tests performed as at 31 December 20@b 3 December 2015 did not reveal any
impairment losses to be recognised in connectitin this portfolio, which is carried at fair value.

The amounts of bonds lent are set out in note 8.21.

The revaluation reserve consists of the followiegnis:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Revaluation reserve for the portfolio of availabde-sale financial assets 484 942 1669 428
Total revaluation reserves net of deferred taxation 484 942 1 669 428
(0 4



The chart below shows the movements of the revalatserve for the available-for-sale assets
portfolio:

(in EUR)
Variable
Fixed income income
securities securities Total
Balance at 30.09.2014 7 806 007 2 153 258 9 959 265

Increase (decrease) in unrealised gross revalugios
— AFS portfolio

Decrease (increase) in unrealised gross revaluktsses

(6389 130)  (2975623) (9 364 753)

_ AFS portfolio (1 590 836) 0 (1 590 836)
Deferred taxation 1796 275 869 477 2 665 752
Balance at 31.12.2015 1622 316 47 112 1 669 428
Increase (decrease) in unrealised gross revalugsioms
_ AFS portfolio (2 172 929) 21125 (2 151 804)
Decrease (increase) in unrealised gross revaluktises
_ AFS portfolio 125 561 (11 271) 114 290
Deferred taxation 855 943 (2 915) 853 028
Balance at 31.12.2016 430 891 54 051 484 942

8.5 Loans and advances to credit institutions

Interbank loans and advances break down as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢  31.12.2015

Overdrafts 261929 23t 97 672 597
Term loans 56 000 00C 249 231 674
Reverse repo transactions 8941212 300 655 953
Accrued interest (16 498) 154 798

Total loans and advances to credit institutions 326 853 94¢

Current accounts not guarantying reverse repurchaderivative transactions and term loans with ahiti
terms of less than three months are included ih egsivalents in the cash flow statement.

8.6 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers and movementgpairinents on these receivables are as follows:

(in EUR)

31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Advances in current account 61776 674 97 926 551
Mortgage loans 7300266C 76235111
Term loans (including Lombard loans) 245888 282z 271 826 940
Accrued interest 1046 771 1206 071
Carrying amount before impairment 381714387 447 194 673
Impairment based on individual assessments (7 541 348) (6 741 326)
Impairment based on collective assessments (1 322 533) (636 583)

372 850 50¢

Total loans and advances to credit institutions 439 816 764

Since 2015, the Bank has decided to record impaitsnen the basis of collective valuations for an
amount of € 1 322 533 (2015: € 636 583) as deatiibehapter 5.7 "Impairment of assets”, on thesbafsthe
recommendations of the European Central Bank attoeo&roup.



Changes in provisions for impairments on the bafsisdividual valuations are as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Balance at beginning of period 6 741 326 6 336 574
Additions 849 814 452 778
Reversals -19 806 -58 897
Application of provisions -32 726 -
Exchange adjustment 2740 10 871

Balance at end of period

8.7 Participating interests

Participating interests are recognised at acqoiisitbst.

As of 31 December 2016, their gross value was ©63(8136 224 as at 31 December 2015).

8.8 Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are as follows:

7 541 348

6 741 326

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Government bonds 70670 754 72 670 755
Bonds issued by credit institutions 10 640 40C 10 640 400
Premiums / discounts (2881 382) (2042 420)
Accrued interest 667 722 666 585

Total held-to-maturiy investments

No impairment losses have been recognised on bataaturity investments.

The amounts of bonds lent are set out in note 8.21.

8.9 Property, plant & equipment

Property, plant and equipment can be broken dovollasvs:

79 097 494

81 935 320

(in EUR)
Land and IT Office Other
buildings* equipment equipment equipment Total
Net carrying amount at 30.09.2014 40 979 264 655 595 516 410 432 781 42 584 050
Acquisition value 65 664 08C 6 127 918 2501 995 1089 994 75 383 987
Cumulative depreciation and impairmer (24 684 816, (5472 323) (1 985 585) (657 213) (32 799 937)
Net carrying amount at 31.12.2015 42 022 992 992 767 523 091 308 395 43 847 245
Acquisition value 68 735 394 6 900 035 2 629 637 1053 461 79 318 527
Cumulative depreciation and impairmer (26 712 402 (5907 268) (2 106 546) (745 066) (35471 282)
Net carrying amount at 31.12.2016 40 865 67¢ 2217 707 599 930 265 688 43 949 004
Acquisition value 69 224 28t 8 506 110 2 807 468 939 993 81 477 856
Cumulative depreciation and impairmer (28 358 606, (6 288 403) (2 207 538) (674 305) (37 528 852)

YThe acquisition cost of the land is €10 248 042tierBank and $225 000 for Promotion Partners S.A.



Changes in the net carrying amount can be explaeddllows:

(in EUR)
Land and IT Office Other
o . . . Total
buildings equipment equipment equipment
Balance at 30.09.2014 40 979 264 655 595 516 410 432 781 42 584 050
Acquisitions 3071314 772 117 127 642 20 254 3991 327
Disposals 0 0 0 (56 788) (56 788)
Depreciation & amortisation (2 023 454) (434 892) (120 959) (110 401) (2 689 706)
Reversal of depreciation on diposal 0 0 0 15 007 15 007
Reversal of impairement on diposal 0 0 0 7 556 7 556
Exchange differences (4 132) (53) 2) (24) (4 201)
Balance at 31.12.2015 42 022 992 992 766 523 091 308 396 43 847 245
Acquisitions 413 958 1 605 874 177 818 0 2197 650
Disposals 0 0 0 (113 538) (113 538)
Depreciation & amortisation (1 637 229) (381 025) (100 987) (42 746) (2 161 987)
Reversal of depreciation on diposal 0 0 0 113 538 113538
Reversal of impairment on diposal 0 0 0 0 0
Exchange differences 65 958 91 8 39 66 096
Balance at 31.12.2016 40 865 679 2217 706 599 930 265 689 43949 004
Residual amounts of fully depreciated fixed asastsestimated at zero.
Land has an indefinite useful life and is therefooé depreciated.
8.10 Intangible assets
Intangible assets can be broken down as follows:
(in EUR)
Goodwill __Software Total
applications
Net carrying amount at 30.09.2014 8 693 359 1 069 840 9763 199
Acquisition value 26 780 138 11 303 174 38 083 312
Cumulative amortisation (17087932) (10233334) (27 321 266)
Impairment (998 847) 0 (998 847)
Net carrying amount at 31.12.2015 6 381 530 1 364 881 7 746 411
Acquisition value 26 780 138 12 314 989 39 095 127
Cumulative amortisation (19066 711) (10950 108) (30016 819)
Impairment (1331 897) 0 (1331 897)
Net carrying amount at 31.12.2016 19 276 817 1238 347 20515 164
Acquisition value 53 200 583 12 786 531 65987 114
Cumulative amortisation (31513930) (11548184) (43062114)
Impairment (2 409 836) 0 (2 409 836)
(0 /4



Changes in the net carrying amount can be explaeddllows:

(in EUR)

Goodwill appSIi(c):f;\t/;/sr:(se Total
Balance at 30.09.2014 8 693 359 1 069 840 9763199
Acquisitions 0 1011 815 1011815
Disposals 0 0 0
Depreciation & amortisation (1978 779) (716 774) (2 695 553)
Amortisation/depreciation reversal on dispo 0 0 0
Impairment (333 050) 0 (333 050)
Balance at 31.12.2015 6 381 530 1364 881 7746 411
Acquisition value 26 395 88C 496 107 26 891 987
Depreciation & amortisation (12 422 654) (622 641) (13 045 295)
Impairment (2077 939) 0 (1077 939)
Balance at 31.12.2016 19 276 817 1238 347 20515 164

In accordance with the accounting methods and iptes described in note 5.6, the Luxembourg
Division conducts impairment tests on intangiblses as a minimum at the close of each financiat, yend
more frequently if there is any indication of ataimgible asset having lost value.

The recoverable value is determined as being tjleehiof the fair value and the value in use.

The fair value is estimated either by applying iiplés to the net operating result or capital under
management. The value in use is determined usigligtounted free cash flow method which discoatits
future cash flows that will be generated by thétgatactivities.

As at 31 December 2016, the results of these immgat tests are similar or superior to the accogntin
value of the business activities, except in the @ithe business activities relating to the mevgér Petercam,
in respect of which an impairment loss of € 1000 thas been recorded, and business activities of
Nagelmackers, in respect of which a loss of € 38 been recorded.

The goodwill coefficient used was 1%.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed whiclkstasscenario of a lower goodwill coefficient (/86
The recoverable value that resulted from this $itgianalysis was higher than the accounting galu

In 2016, the goodwill of € 9 115 830 recorded ia Betercam (Luxembourg) S.A. balance sheet and full
amortised has been included in the Bank's balaneetsA new amount of € 17 280 050 has been resedni
following the merger.

In accordance with the accounting methods and ipfes described in note 5.5, the Bank conducts
impairment tests on intangible assets as a minimuthe close of each financial year, and more &aty if
there is any indication of an intangible asset hglost value.

The value in use was used to estimate the goodalille of the merger with Petercam (Luxembourg) S.A.
for customer relations as part of the private bamd institutional management activities.

The valuation performed for the impairment testbdased on the same model as the one initially tsed
calculate the goodwill value. This model is basedtlee discounted cash flow method, which is based o
projected revenue generated by client capital @avelefined period, ending in 2026. The gradual decbf
traditional customers in private discretionary ngeraent is estimated at 10.8% per annum, while timeial
growth of the remaining capital under managemeanstsnated at 3%. Cash flows are discounted atapéal
cost after taxes of 7.6%. Since the value in useulzded is lower than the carrying value, an impaint of
€1 027 000 was recognised at year end.

As for other goodwill, an impairment loss is recadwhen the fair value of the capital under
management initially included in the goodwill arill present on the test date is less than theyrayvalue of

%



the goodwill. As a result, an impairment of € 5®38as recorded at the end of the year for the Maaehers
fund.

The Group did not perform any impairment tests BANP Luxembourg as no incident showed that
business was declining.

The chart below shows impairments recognised pedwil item:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Degroof, Thierry, Portabella & Associés S.A. (312 089) (312 089)
Banque Nagelmakers 1747 (Luxembourg) S.A. (1 070 747) (1019 808)
Petercam (Luxembourg) S.A. (1 027 000) 0
Total impairment (2409 836) (1331897
8.11 Interests in associates accounted for usingetlequity method
Investments in companies accounted for using th@yemethod are summarized as follows:
(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Landolt & Cie S.A. (13 336 410)

As of 31 December 2015, the equity of Landolt & Gi&. amounted to CHF 37 082 991 and the profit to
CHF 5 386 031 (15 months). On 10 May 2016, Lanfidlie S.A. was sold.

On 31 December 2016, an amount of € 1 270 451 nedisded in "Other liabilities" (31 December 2015:
€1 254 082) (note 8.17) concerning associates ateddor using the equity method:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€¢ 31.12.2015

Promotion 777 S.A. (25 559) (154 892)
Stairway To Heaven S.A. 9 243 12 976
Seniorenresidenz Berdorf S.A. (254 619) (147 882)
Le Cloitre S.A. (999 516) (964 284)

Total (1270451) (1254082

8.12 Other assets

The ‘Other assets’ item comprises:

(in EUR)

31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Income receivable 54 011 107 53 964 053
Prepaid expenses 1 944 066 1133 861
Advance payment of taxes 390 318 538 742
VAT 3100 216 3907 133
Other assets 572 281 843 463
Total other assets 60 017 98¢ 60 387 257

Income receivable mainly relates to fees due framestment funds. “Tax advances” heading shows
advance payments of taxes other than those on prafirefundable in accordance with national legjish.



8.13 Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities held for trading comprise tfudlowing:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Derivatives held for trading 59269 11¢ 74 209 874
Liabilities linked to short selling of financial asets 0 3920 166
Fixed income securities 0 3920 166
Accrued interest 4140 935 6 505 753

Total financial liabilities held for trading

63 410 05%

The charts below show breakdowns of the derivativdd-for-trading:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.201¢€ 31.12.201¢& 31.12.2015
Carrying Notional Carrying Notional
amount value amount value
Exchange derivatives 33 606 80¢ 1 835 850 84: 45 178 374 3 004 086 885
Not listed
Forward contracts 10547 954 764 031 47¢ 18 085 37¢ 975 480 753
Swap contracts 23 027 581 1033973 27: 26 644 091 1 368 282 654
Options issued 31274 6 820 368 448 905 246 570 354
Organised market
Futures 0 31025 721 0 413753124
Interest rate derivatives 15 429 175 1 494 923 00¢ 21 314 725 1 495 233 905
Not listed
Swap contracts 15412 79z 1 331 949 33¢ 17901 101 1417 723 148
Organised market
Options issued 16 383 9566 711 3413624 61 941 020
Futures 0 153406 961 0 15569 737
Equity derivatives 10233134 662 970 12¢ 7716775 752 765 352
Not listed
Options issued 2937 130 26 168 384 1 096 550 50 773 256
Organised market
Options issued 7 296 004 82 665 012 6 620225 164564 778
Futures 0 55413673 0 537427318

Total derivatives held for trading

59 269 11€ 3 993 743 97¢

74 209 874 5 252 086 141

Please refer to note 8.20 for a breakdown of falines (excluding accrued interest), according tethr
they are derived from a published market pricesimgia valuation technique.

8.14 Deposits from credit institutions

Interbank deposits break down as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Sight deposits 81 916 96¢ 28 977 628
Term deposits 9 026 385 5710714
Accrued interest 3223 2984

Total deposits from credit institutions

90 946 57¢€

34 691 324



Note that sight accounts which do not guaranteersevrepurchase transactions or derivatives and
deposits with initial terms of less than three rhenaire included in cash equivalents in the cash $tatement.

8.15 Customer deposits

Deposits from customers break down as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Sight deposits 2082943 60. 2028730 720
Term deposits 157 527577 471173 000
Accrued interest (65 358) 85 138
Total customer deposits 2 240 405 82( 2 499 988 859
8.16 Provisions
Provisions break down as follows:
(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Provision for restructuring 3672711 4100 000
Provisions for litigation 0 2 550 000
Total provisions 3672711 6 650 000

The restructuring provision was recognised follayvihe reorganisation of activities as a resulthef t
merger of the Degroof and Petercam groups whick &ftect on 1 April 2016 through the merger of the
Luxembourg Divisions.

The provisions for litigations are based on thet lestimates available at the end of the financidry
taking into account the opinion of internal andeemal experts: following these analyses, all pliovis were
reversed during the previous financial year, i.8.5350 000.

The cash flows relating to these provisions areknotvn, given uncertainties relating to the resultl
the time frame for settling these litigations.

R



8.17 Other liabilities
Other liabilities comprise the following items:

(in EUR)

31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Salaries and social liabilities 6 990 145 6811 735
Charges payable 40 391 78€ 40 082 042
Unearned income 251 483 166 971
Other financial liabilities 5032 302 6 519 226
Other liabilities 7 942 033 7 854 819
Associates accounted for using the equity methc 1270 451 1254 082

Total other liabilities 61 878 20C 62 688 874

Other payables consist mainly of VAT and other saxeompanies accounted for using the equity method
are listed in note 8.11.

8.18 Current and deferred tax liabilities

Tax liabilities can be summarised as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Current taxation 18 537 90C 14 365 696
Deferred taxation 7 452 601 5185 949
Total current and deferred taxation 25990 501 19 551 645
Changes in deferred tax liabilities are explaingd b
(in EUR)

31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015

Balance at beginning of period 5 185 949 8 357 828

Charge (Income) to profit and loss (791 297) (541 681)
Items recognised directly in equity (595 650) (2 665 755)
Reclassification of current tax (1591 176) 35 557

Changes in consolidation scope 5244 775 0
Balance at end of period 7 452 601 5 185 949

Changes in scope are as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.2016

Deferred taxes on Petercam Luxembourg Private Bagndoodwill 2 254 469
Deferred taxes on PLU-PIAM Luxembourg goodwill 2 540 694
Deferred taxes on transfers to the reserve pravisighe FRBG 449 612

Total current and deferred taxation 5244 775

Deferred tax is calculated on the following tempypmifferences:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
Plant, property & equipment and intangible asse: 6 197 620 2193 754
Provisions 1 054 959 605 347
Available-for-sale financial assets 200 022 795 672
Interests in companies accounted for using thetyquethod 0 1591176

Deferred taxation 7 452 601




8.19 Equity

The chart below shows the composition of equity:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
Capital subscribed 37 000 00C 37 000 000
Share premiums 40 356 00C 40 356 000
Legal reserve 3 700 00C 3 700 000
Reserve for wealth tax 34516 174 35 489 898
Other reserves and retained earnings 66 411 932 121 431 933
Revaluation reserves 484 942 1669 428
Profit for the year attrubutable to owners of tiaeegmt 47 723 172 60 618 594
Interim dividend 0 (50 320 000)
Non-controlling participating interests recognizeaquity 52 560 16 500
Total 230 244 78(C 249 962 35

The Bank’s subscribed capital is represented byOD@0shares, each with a par value of €50.

LEGAL RESERVE

Under the Commercial Companies Act, at least 5%edfprofit must be allocated to a legal reservéneac
year until this reserve is equal to 10% of the shaapital. The legal reserve has reached 10% oslikhee

capital.

RESERVE FOR WEALTH TAX

In accordance with paragraph 8a of the law on \wdalt, the Bank allocates the wealth tax due fer th
year to the amount of wealth tax. To this end, Bamk's general meeting of shareholders allocatea to
nondistributable reserve an amount correspondiffigedimes the amount of the wealth tax allocated.

REVALUATION RESERVES

Revaluation reserves comprise unrealised net gaiddosses on available-for-sale financial assets (
notes 8.4 and 9.14). In accordance with CSSF rdagnlao. 14-02, unrealised gains net of tax from ldst
financial year included in the revaluation reseraes allocated to a non-distributable reserve. ahmunt
concerned is €484 942 for the financial year ergle@ecember 2016 (2015: €1 669 428).

OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Other reserves and retained earnings reflect thmadmof the transition to IFRS for an amount of
€16 594 740 , and the result relating to the piifiring plan put in place in the Group, namelg\wgersal of
€32 466 for the financial year ended 31 Decemb&6ZQ015: a charge of €592 010).

As at 31 December 2016, the cumulative amountinglab the profit sharing plan included in other

reserves stood at €4 698 929 (2015: €4 731 396).

Other reserves also include goodwill of €73 188 2&8orded in 2016 following the integration of
Petercam (Luxembourg) S.A and the reclassificatibtihe profit and loss account to reserves of gesdadised
by Petercam (Luxembourg) S.A. at the time of tHe eAPIAM Luxembourg to DPAS for €7 547 663.

In accordance with CSSF no. 14-02, unrealised gahsf tax on portfolio securities "Financial essa
fair value through profit and loss" shown in theffirand loss for the financial year 2015 have bakwrcated to

a non-distributable reserve of €206 390.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Luxembourg Divisiogc@ed not to make an interim dividend payment in

2016 (2015: €50 320 000) as permitted by the Agsiclf Association.



8.20 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of financigtiuments are shown, by financial instrument

category, in the chart below:

(in EUR)

31.12.201€ 31.12.201¢€ 31.12.201¢& 31.12.2015
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
Financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks 592 328 301 592328 301 13723416t 137 234165
Financial assets held for trading 59 314 35¢ 59 314 35¢ 77 020 69t 77 020 695
Financial assets at fair value through profit asg&bl 905 669 34€ 905 669 34¢ 615 359 374 615 359 374
Available-for sale financial assets 255909 13t 255909 13t 83363396¢ 833633968
Loans and advances to credit institutions 326 853 94¢ 326 8668871 647 715022z 647 757 565
Loans and advances to customers 372 850 50¢ 37514363t 439816 764 442 220913
Held-to-maturity investments 79 097 494 80 327 90¢ 81 935 32C 83718 971

Total 2592 023 08¢ 2 595 559 57. 2832 715 30¢ 2 836 945 65

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading 63 410 052 63 410 052 84 635 792 84 635 793
Deposits from credit institutions 90 946 57¢€ 90 927 17¢ 34 691 32¢ 34 690 280
Customer deposits 2 240 405 82( 2240861 12t 2 499 988 85¢ 2 500 530 136
Total 2 394 762 44¢ 2 395 198 35¢ 2 619 315 977 2 619 856 204

The fair value of financial instruments includesraed interest.

For financial instruments not measured at fair @ahu the financial statements, the following method
and assumptions are used to determine the faie@linstruments not listed on an active market:

. the carrying amount of short-term financial instents and of financial instruments without fixed
maturities corresponds to a reasonable approximafitheir fair value

other loans and borrowings are revalued by diséogrheir future cash flows to NPV on the basis of
market interest rate curves at the closing date

The fair value of financial instruments is deteredrusing the methods described in chapter 5.3.40 ‘F
value of financial instruments’.

The classification of financial instruments by hiehy of fair values was thoroughly reviewed in 201
This re-examination focused particularly on soméhefcriteria used to determine the level at wiaidhir value
is classified, such as the metric of the level iqliility of a market, the average volumes of tratisas
observed and the frequency of valuations.

Financial instruments are classified in one ofttiree following categories:

level 1, comprising valuations based on quotedegran active markets; No valuation model or tealaiq
is used
level 2, which relies on valuation models and téghes using observable parameters on an activeatnark

Valuations not based on observable data on actar&ets are classified as level 3.



The charts below show fair value classificationgligding accrued interest) by valuation category:

(in EUR)
31.12.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
Derivatives 7 312 388 49 888 39:¢ 0 57 200 781
Other financial assets held for trading 117 434 1527 554 310 477 1 955 465
Financial assets at fair value through profit asesl 763 314 56¢ 138 587 35( 0 901901918
Available-for sale financial assets 169 057 54( 86 137 427 199 007 255393974

939 801 93C 276 140 72¢ 509 484 1 216 452 13§

Financial liabilities

Derivatives 7 312 387 51 956 731 0 59 269 118
Other financial liabilities held for trading 0 0 0 0
Total 7 312 387 51 956 731 0 59 269 119
31.12.2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value

Derivatives 10 033 84¢ 54 400 447 - 64 434 296
Other financial assets held for trading 5968 294 4 563 447 739 744 11 271 485
Financial assets at fair value through profit aoebl 462 568 08¢ 149 051 00C - 611619086
Available-for sale financial assets 722111982 108 117 50¢ 210816 830440 304
Total 1200682 21: 316 132 40( 950 560 1517 765 17
Financial liabilities

Derivatives 10 033 84¢ 64 176 02& 0 74 209 874

Other financial liabilities held for trading
Total

3920 166 0 0 3920 166
13 954 01t 64 176 02t 0 78 130 04(

Level 3 securities in the Available-for-sale Finah@&ssets portfolio are valued mainly on the baxfis
equity and consist of structures used by Estateriitig and unlisted shares.

The following chart sets out the movements relatmghe carrying amounts of the available-for-sale
financial instruments classified as level 3:

(in EUR)

Variable

income

securities

Balance at 30.09.2014 4 129 422
Acquisitions 29 910 742
Disposals (12 917 247)
Dissolutions (20191 717)
Revaluation of securities 16 900
Transfer to Participating Interests portfolio (737 284)
Balance at 31.12.2015 210 816
Acquisitions 62 992
Disposals (1 253)
Dissolutions (82 288)
Revaluation of securities 8 741
Transfer to Participating Interests portfolio (2)
Balance at 31.12.2016 199 007



The details of the period’s movements are as falow

(in EUR)

31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
e
Tax on income for the financial year (83679) (995 830)
Effect on profit(loss) for the financial year 202 697 2412 213
Remeasurement of fair value — Available-for-sahaficial assets 8 741 16 900
Taxes charged directly to reserves (2 554) (4 938)
Effect on other components of comprehensive income 6 187 11 962
Effect on total comprehensive income 208 884 2 424 175

8.21 Financial assets transferred
Financial assets transferred as of 31 December 201th 31 December 2015 but remaining fully

recognised consist solely of bonds lent in the exinodf the securities lending activity. The amouotghese
securities are listed by asset class in the foligwable:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.201¢€ 31.12.201¢& 31.12.2015
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit asgsl 115370 627 115370627 122 614 92: 122614923
Available-for sale financial assets 20 124 192 20 124 192z 423 364 80t 423 364 805
Held-to-maturity investments 0 0 46 358 311 47 386 234

Total financial assets transferred 135 494 81¢ 135494 81¢ 592 338 03¢

8.22 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
The Luxembourg Division does not employ accountoifgetting practices but it has signed some

‘offsetting master agreements’ with certain coupeties such as:

‘ISDA Master Agreement’ for OTC derivative trandaots
‘global master repurchase agreements’ for repuechad reverse repurchase transactions
‘global master securities lending agreements’ émusities lending transactions

Assets given or received as collateral for thesanitial transactions may be the following:

cash and securities for repurchase and reversectegae transactions and for over-the-counter déréeva
transactions for which the Luxembourg Division hdgned a Credit Support Annex agreement in
addition to the’'ISDA’

securities for securities lending transactions.



The charts below set out the financial assets iabdifies which are covered by an enforceableaifisg
master agreement or a similar agreement. Collatethe form of securities is shown at valuatioroanmt.

(in EUR)
Financial assets subject to offsetting Offsetting potential
Balance sheet Net amount
Amount offsettin . . after takin
peiore _win Nelamount - Fnendal - Coleed g accoun
offsetting financial offsetting
31.12.2016 liabilities potential
Derivatives 48 213 01z 0 48 213 015 (21337839 (25652 380 1222794
Reverse repos 8 939 844 0 8 939 844 - (8 939 844) 0
Securities lending 135 494 81¢ 0 135494 81¢ - (66 848 885 68 645 934
192 647 67¢ 0 192647 67€ (21337839 (101441109 69 868 724
31.12.2015
Derivatives 49 483 18¢ 0 49 483 186 (24 366 574, (14 509 951, 10 606 663
Reverse repos 300 655 95: 300 655 95: 0 (298 146 844 2509 109
Securities lending 592 338 05¢ 0 592 338 03¢ 0 (592 338 039 0
Total 942 477 20C 0 94247718C (24366574 (904994834 13115 777
(in EUR)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting Offsetting potential
Balance sheet Net amount
Amount offsett|.ng Net amount Financial Collateal _after taking
bef(_)re ' W'.th recognised assets received Into account
offsetting financial offsetting
31.12.2016 assets potential
Derivatives 51 075 42¢ 0 51 07542€ (21337839 (29 737587, 0
Total 51 075 42¢€ 0] 51 075 42€ (21337839 (29 737 587 0
31.12.2015
Derivatives 62 860 80¢ 0 62 860 80€ (24 366 574 (19 104 245 19 389 990
62 860 80¢ 62 860 80€ (24 366 574, (19 104 245 19 389 99(
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9 Notes to the income statement

The profit and loss account as at 31 December Z0tkides the profit and loss of Petercam
(Luxembourg) S.A. for the first quarter of 2016JIdwing the integration of this company into thewne
organisation on the 1 April with retroactive effé@m 1 January 2016.

9.1 Interest income and charges
Interest income and charges by type of interestitgéinancial instrument are as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015

(12 months) (15 months)

Interest income 45 288 721 47 615 164
Cash and sight accounts with central banks 3342 8 242
Financial assets held for trading 29 236 19¢ 26 027 516
Financial assets at fair value through profit aos$| 9 043 458 8 202 383
Available-for sale financial assets 780 667 2 831 867
Loans and advances to credit institutions 431 840 1 050 857
Loans and advances to customers 5072 292 8 085 426
Held-to-maturity investments 720 924 1408 873
Interest charges -33 898 454 -34 733 598
Financial liabilities held for trading (32579 319 (33 020 157)
Owed to credit institutions (429 120) -280 714
Customer deposits (890 015) (1432 727)
Net interest margin 11 390 267 12 881 564

9.2 Dividend income
Dividends received by financial asset categorysateout below:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015

Dividend income (12 months) (15 months)
Financial assets held for trading 2 023 400 0
Financial assets at fair value through profit aoss$| 7 559 2617 900
Available-for sale financial assets 1 606 790 151

Total 2 032 565 3408 05
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9.3 Fees and commissions received and paid

Fees and commissions received and paid are digtdlmong the following services:

(in EUR)

31.12.201€ 31.12.2015

(12 months) (15 months)

Commission received 254 194 52¢ 303 416 486

Activities linked to investment funds — Depositéignk 12 952 652 16 645 727
Activities linked to investment funds — Central adistration 21 601 43C 12 336 080
Activities linked to investment funds — Other 175 339 15¢ 129 008 416
Asset management 7071 780 92 835 627
Brokerage fees 12 632 93¢ 19 585 244
Activities linked to securities (other than custddgs) 15711 31z 22 088 033
Custody fees 4 641 362 5436 753
Other 4 243 891 5 480 606
Commission paid (166 925592 (200 057 216
Activities linked to investment funds — Central ddistration (1 616 385) (2182 191)
Activities linked to investment funds — Deposit&ank and others (144 724501 (166 862 134)
Brokerage fees (10 383 646 (15 410 120)
Activities linked to securities (other than custddgs)g (5 226 733) (7 937 093)
Fees (1 227 655) (1 371 008)
Custody fees (2 397 587) (3 005 353)
Other (1 349 085) (3289 317)

Net fees & commissions 87 268 932 103 359 27(

The heading “Investment-fund related activitiesthe€d’ consists essentially of distribution comniss
and management fees.

Most of the fees are commissions paid to busirefesrers.

9.4 Net result on held-for trading financial instruments

The chart below breaks down the gains and lossd®elmhfor-trading financial instruments by type of
financial instrument:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015

Net gain /(loss) on financial assets and liabiliteheld for trading (12 months) (15 months)
Equity instruments and associated derivatives (8 686 530) (4 015 384)
Interest rate instruments and associated derivsative 12 676 284 7 872 443
Exchange transactions 6 362 426 12 047 603
Total 10 352 18C 15 904 664

All interest received and paid on these finangiatiuments is recognised in interest income andyelsa
The above-mentioned gains and losses include nwat&ifair value of these financial instruments.



9.5 Net result on financial instruments at fair vailie through profit and loss

Results on financial instruments at fair value tigio profit and loss break down as follows by type o
financial instrument:

(in EUR)
Net gain /(loss) on financial assets and liabilit@at fair value through 31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
profit and loss (12 months) (15 months)
Equity instruments 7 422 195 1629 405
Interest rate instruments (6 804 311) (4 060 058)
Total 617 884 (2 430 653

The above-mentioned gains and losses include ngat&ifair value of these financial instruments &l w
as realised gains and losses.

9.6 Net result on financial instruments not measu@ at fair value
through profit and loss

The chart below breaks down the gains and losseancial instruments not measured at fair value
through profit and loss by category and by typérancial instrument:

(in EUR)
Net gain /(loss) on financial assets and liabiliteenot measured at fair value 31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
through profit and loss (12 months) (15 months)
Available-for sale financial assets 5651 191 5 763 305
Loans and advances 0 (10000)
Total 5651 191 5 753 305

All interest received and paid on these finangiatiuments is recognised in interest income andyelsa
The marking to fair value of available-for-saledittial assets is recognised in equity under retialugeserves.

Only gains or losses realised on sales of avaHfainleale financial assets are included under this
heading.

9.7 Other net operating results
Other net operating results break down as follows:
(in EUR)

31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
(12 months) (15 months)

Other operating income 9541 114 5183 906
Rental income 2 149 217 2 367 942
Capital gains realised on sale of property, plarggtipment & intangible assets 21720 0

Recovery of miscellaneous expenses 1500 535 1 599 002
AGDL reimbursements 65 374 54 729
Interes received on financial liabilities 3089 671 144 166
Miscellaneous 2 714 597 1018 067
Other operating expenses (2 895 238) (1973 696

Capital losses realised on sale of property, gaatiuipment & intangible asset: 0 (4 167)
Interest paid on financial assets (2 349 513) (149 976)
Taxes and duties other than on income (303 102) (437 843)
Miscellaneous (242 623) (1 381 710)
Other net operating results 6 645 876 3210 210

R
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VAT refunds are recognised under miscellaneousnigcfor an amount of €1 183 024 in the financial
year as of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: £66p Recovery of miscellaneous expenses alsodesl
the re-invoicing of administrative services andgahexpenses such as electricity cogeneratioregughment
rental.

Interest received and paid on financial instrumethis interest of which is negative, concerns egerate
derivatives, assets deposited with the Luxemboungfi@l Bank and client deposits.

9.8 Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses comprise the following:

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
Personnel expenses (12 months) (15 months)
Salaries and other benefits (32193 899 (36 114 741)
Social security, national insurance and supplenmgimaurance (3402 670) (3793 893)
Charges associated with pensions (934 030) (1 135 480)
Employee benefits linked to profit sharing scheme 32 466 (592 010)
Other costs (824 108) (1 043 799)
Total (37 322 241, (42 679 923
Note 11 provides information on benefits grantedtsdf and on the profit sharing plan.
The average number of employees was:
Personnel 31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
Board members 11 13
Senior managers 147 132
Employees 175 172
Total 333 317
The amount of remuneration allocated to the gowgrbiody during the year was:
(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Governance body (12 months) (15 months)
Directors (212 404) (191 091)
Management (3 198 354) (5077 189)
Total (3410 758) (5 268 280

As of 31 December 2016, the total amount of advsffwans granted to directors stood at €891 491 (31
December 2015: €991 670) while not advance wasteplatd the management body in 2016 (31 December
2015: €334 755).

As of 31 December 2016 other commitments had besderto directors for €22 870 (31 December 2015:
€28 658); while no commitment was granted to theagament body in 2016 (31 December 2015: €16 109).



9.9 General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses break dowollasvf

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
(12 months) (15 months)

Marketing, advertising and public relations (778 441) (737 893)
Professional fees (4 775921} (2 300 232)
Operating fees (1 972 535) (1 702 450)
IT and telecommunications charges (7 277 930; (6 185 422)
Repair and maintenance (2 144 784, (2 580 196)
Other general and administrative expenses (6 377 979, (4 089 513)
Total (23 327 590 (17 595 706

Other general and administrative expenses consistlynof entertainment and travel expenses, supplie
and documentation costs, training expenses, antlitmations and insurance premiums other than thioked

to personnel.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 dméribution of €423 172 to the national resolution
fund and the provision of €34 442 for the deposiargntee fund were also included under this hea(8tg

December 2015: €183 392 and €166 120, respectively)

Fees recognised for services invoiced to the Luxemdp Division during the year by KPMG

Luxembourg Société Cooperative and by audit firestging to the KPMG network are as follows:

(excluding VAT, in EUR)

31.12.201€ 31.12.2015

(12 months) (15 months)

Legal audit of the consolidated financial stateradaot the year (343 233) (407 126)
Tax advisory services (343 534) (302 956)
Other services (79 226) (193 420)
Total (765 993) (903 502

9.10 Depreciation of property, plant and equipmentand amortisation

of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment foe tyear ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
€2 173935 (2015: €2 689 706) and amortisation rdhngible assets amounted to €3 920 719 (2015:

€2 695 553).

A breakdown of this depreciation and amortisatigrabset category is given in notes 8.9 and 8.10.

9.11 Provisions

During the previous financial year, a provision festructuring was recognised for €4 100 000 (note
8.15), it was only used in 2016. The total of pstas for litigations as of 31 December 2015 wiaatounted

for € 2 550 000, was reversed in 2016.

As of 31 December 2015, additional provisions of98 679 allowed the Group to settle two disputes

(note 8.16).
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9.12 Net impairment losses on assets
Net impairment losses on assets break down asv&llo
(in EUR)

31.12.201¢ 31.12.2015
(12 months) (15 months)

Loans and advances to customers (1 515 958 (1 030 464)
Intangible assets (goodwill) (12077 939, (333 050)
Intere_s;ts in assoc_:lates, subsidiaries and joiniuves accounted 0 (1 605 257)
for using the equity method

Total (2 593 897) (2968 771

The breakdown of changes in impairment on loansamvwdnces to customers as of 31 December 2016
and 2015 are included in note 7.6.

Net impairment on intangible assets is relatedankBLandolt & Cie S.A. as shown in the note 7.7.

9.13 Tax expense

The net tax expense is explained as follows:

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
Tax on income for the financial year 10 497 13¢ 12 845 885
Deferred taxation (1 045 366) (541 681)
Tax on income for the financial year 9451 773 12 304 204
Reversal of prior years’ provisions (10 264) (3 866 019)
Net tax expense 9 441 509 8 438 185

The following chart shows the reconciliation of tstandard tax rate in Luxembourg (29.22% with the
Bank’s effective tax rate).

(in EUR)
31.12.201€ 31.12.2015
(12 months) (15 months)

Pre-tax profit 57 154 14t 69 011 684
Tax rate applicable at closing date 29.22% 29.22%
Effect of differences in tax rates in other jurittins 106 297 135 448
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1427 685 1 309 185
Tax effect of non-taxable income (761 730) (1942 922)
Deductible tax expenses (6 140 100) (7 469 146)
Effect of other items (1 880 820) 106 425

Tax on income for the financial year 9451 773 12 304 204

Average effective tax rate 16.54% 17.83%

The tax effect of non-taxable income consists nyaifl capital gains on shares, non-taxable dividends
and reversals of previous years’ provisions foetax
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9.14 Other components of comprehensive income
Other components of comprehensive income consigsoifits not recognised through profit and loss.

For the financial years ended 31 December 201634nbDecember 2015, other items of comprehensive
income consisted solely of unrealised gains anselselating to the revaluation of the portfolicavhilable-
for-sale financial assets as shown in the chadvb@h euros. These results are recognised direciyguity (see
note 8.4) and may be reclassified to profit and losa subsequent period.

(in EUR)

31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015
(12 months) (15 months)

Fixed income securities (2 050 252, (5177 268

Adjustement to fair value before tax 219 282 (7 361 559)
Transfer from reserve to pre-tax profit

Reversal of reserve following disposals / reimbomsets (2 009 271 (618 408)

Change in unrealised revaluation gains and lossesailable-for-

sale assets as a result of their reclassificatsametd-to-maturity 0 (8 287)

investments
Taxes charged directly to reserves (260 263) 2 810 986
Adjustement to fair value before tax 9 853 16 900
Transfer from reserve to pre-tax profit

Reversal of reserve following disposals / reimborsets 0 (2 992 522)
Taxes charged directly to reserves 855 913 (145 234)
Total other components of comprehensive income (1 184 486, (8 298 124

10 Rights and commitments

10.1 Assets in open custody

Assets in open custody are basically transferadtergties that have been entrusted for safekedping
clients, regardless of whether or not the holdfggs disposition is limited or whether the secastare covered
by an asset management agreement with the Luxegivision. These assets are measured at fair value

The Luxembourg Division's assets in open custodyfa81 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
amounted to €41 268 267 339 and €39 276 537 5p2ctegely.

10.2 Guarantees issued

As of 31 December 2016, the Bank had issued baakagtees totalling €18 985 881 and completion
guarantees amounting to €7 811 401 (2015: €16 84&6d €24 187 194 respectively).

As of 31 December 20165, the total amount of cdsged as collateral stood at €97 149 691 (2015:
€50 338 403) of which €56 040 263 (2015: €31 238) Bedged to Banque Degroof Petercam S.A. in @spe
of proprietary and client options and futures teations; the balance is mostly accounted for byrantaes
granted in the context of CSA agreements.

R



10.3 Guarantees received

Total guarantees received in the form of assetgtaassignments and sureties for loans granted to
customers, securities lending and derivatives &etitns amounted to €623 106 361 as of 31 Decegliks
(31 December 2015: €1 396 662 917). Of these gterar€514 823 876 (31 December 2015: €1 289 898 204
consisted of mortgages and pledges of cash andtsexu

As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, €8 939 421 and28®36, respectively, of collateral was received
under repurchase transactions but none of thesardambave been used to guarantee repurchase tiansac

10.4 Commitments

The Bank has commitments under credit lines gratdezlistomers, of which the unused amount at 31
December 2016 stood at €119 072 289 (at 31 DeceP@iér €49 689 812).

The Bank has also commitments to subscribe sessidtn behalf of its clients for € 2 000 000 as bf 3
December 2016. In 2015, no commitment of this mahas been made.

As of 31 December 2016, the amount of fiduciarpdections was €493 204 174 (2015: € 656 493 011).

As part of the merger by absorption of its subsidiBegroof Banque Privée S.A. in June 2013 the
Luxembourg Division took over the latter’s tax dadal commitments.

The law on measures for the resolution, recoveny Eguidation of credit institutions and certain
investment undertakings and deposit guarantee sshamd indemnification of investors (‘the Act’) waassed
on 18 December 2015. It transposed Directive 2@¥EA3 establishing a framework for the recovery and
resolution of credit institutions and Directive 2049/EU on deposit guarantee schemes into Luxengdaur.

The deposit guarantee and investor indemnificaggstem in force until now, run by the AGDL
(Association pour la Garantie des Dépéts Luxembowiti be replaced by a new contribution-based d#po
guarantee and investor compensation system. Thesgst@m will guarantee all eligible deposits ofirgke
depositor up to €100 000 and investments up toOBB0 The law also provides that deposits derivirognf
specific transactions, fulfilling a social purpogelinked to particular life events will be protedtover and
above €100 000 for a period of twelve months.

By the end of 2024 the financial resources of tRé& FFonds de Résolution Luxembourg) must reach at
least 1% of the guaranteed deposits as definedtidlé\1, no. 36 of the Act of all approved credititutions in
all participating Member States. This amount wil bollected from credit institutions by means ofiaed
contributions from 2015 to 2024.

The target level of the financial resources of FiI&DL (Fonds de Garantie des Dép6ts Luxembourg or
Luxembourg Deposit Guarantee Fund) has been €e8%t of the member institutions’ guaranteed depasst
defined in Article 163 no. 8 of the Act and mustditained by the end of 2018. Contributions willgsgable
annually from 2016 to 2018. For 2015, the credititntions have set aside a provision of 0.2% afrgnteed
deposits for these contributions.

When the level of 0.8% is reached, Luxembourg triegtitutions will continue to contribute for eigh
more years so as to build up an additional safeshion of 0.8% of guaranteed deposits as defing&ttiole
163 no. 8 of the Act.

During the financial year, the Luxembourg Divisipaid annual contributions to FGDL of €200 562 and
€423 172 to FRL.



1 1 Employee benefits and share-based payment

plans

11.1 Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits consist of defined couati@m pension plans. The contributions expense
during this past financial year was €934 030 (€3 480 for the year to 31 December 2015).

11.2 Group profit sharing plans

In recent years Banque Degroof Petercam S.A. hiagpse number of profit sharing plans either for
directors, senior managers of the Banque Degro@fr®am Group or both, with a view to ensuring theyalty
and aligning their personal interests with thosdéhef Group. These schemes have been set up indaccer
with local legal provisions. The corresponding grftr the charge for the period of €32 466 in 2@2615:
€592 010) is recognised in equity.

The profit sharing plans set up include cash-sktflans and share-settled plans. The Bank did not
announce any plan during the previous two finanaalrs under review.

12 Related parties

The Luxembourg Division’s related parties are tksoaiates, members of the Board of Directors and
other executives of the Luxembourg Division andsitbsidiaries (‘key management’), as well as claseily
members of the aforementioned persons and any eonyaatrolled or significantly influenced by one tbie
aforementioned persons.

The charts below summarise, by type, the trangatimdertaken with related parties of the Banque
Degroof Petercam S.A. Group:

(in EUR)
Other
Parent Key related
31.12.2016 company Associates management parties Total
Balance sheet
Advances in current accounts 161 296 82( 451 705 2 695 891 3147857 167 592 273
Term loans 0 439786 1267564 64939 01¢ 78 054 450
Other assets 4015174 0 0 3377191 7 392 365
Total assets 165 311 99/ 891491 1537153¢ 71464064 253 039 084
Deposits 1972059 10560 714 165210 60 002 26C 90 448 779
Other liabilities 7 908 788 271 0 202 904 8111 963
Total liabilities 27 629 38 10 560 98t 165210 60 205 164 98 560 744
Guarantees issued 13 750 20 000 7 188 759 0 7 222 509
Guarantees received 0 450 385 6948 873 17 939 421 25338 679
Other commitments 0 2870 510674 5852 143 6 365 687
(0 4



(in EUR)
Key  Other related

31122016 Parent company  Associates management parties Total
Income statement

Financial expenses (10) 0 0 (149 624) (149 634)
Fees and commissions (61 229 649 0 0 (21 148 117, (82 377 766)
Personnel expenses 0 (5224817 0 0 (5224 817)
Other (1 726 136) 0 0 (33 028) (1 759 164)
Total expenses (62 955 795 (5224 817) (21 330 769

Interest income 309 258 9996 305 524 1554 626 332
Fees and commissions 1068 734 18 745 0 11 051 37¢ 12 138 854
Other 0 0 8 144 10 000 18 144

Total revenues 1377 992 28 741 313 668 11 062 92¢ 12 783 330

(in EUR)
Parent Associates Key Other related Total

31.12.2015 company management parties
Balance sheet
Advances in current accounts 65 109 881 553 702 4584 053 2616 843 72 864 479
Term loans 180 040 92¢ 772723 12514 244 61 883 13z 255211 027
Other assets 12 100 03C - - 2 755 91¢ 14 855 949
Total assets 257 250 83¢ 1326425 17 098 297 67 255 894 342 931 454
Deposits 8322175 9248150 9621 429 566 488 27 758 242
Other liabilities 18 420 64z 3252 159 000 3692 234 22 275 128
Total liabilities 26 742 817 9 251 402 9 780 429 4 258 722 50 033 37(
Guarantees issued 13 750 22 500 15 461 694 0 15 497 944
Guarantees received 0 6 948 6 948 873 9 000 00C 15955 821
Other commitments 0 22 267 1 500 658 6 383 157 7 906 082

(in EUR)
31 122015 Parent company  Associates managerﬁgt Other rpeei?ttiig Total
Income statement (15 months)
Financial expenses (707) 0 (2 903) (102 328) (105 938)
Fees and commissions (69 907 729 (4 503) (969 618) (17 882 250, (88 764 100)
Personnel expenses 0 (7 337816) 0 (385483) (7 723 299)
Other (15 262) 0 (478 240) (233 825) (727 327)
Total expenses (69923698 (7342319) (1450761) (18603886 (97 320664
Interest income 177 835 24 472 268 751 124 083 595 141
Fees and commissions 273 984 33 405 91 566 14 013 49C 14 412 445
Other 0 0 108 845 12 500 121 345

Total revenues 451 819 469 162 14 150 07z 15 128 93
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All the related party transactions shown in thevabcharts were carried out under normal market
conditions.

Key management personnel costs break down as fllow

(in EUR)
31.12.201¢€ 31.12.2015

Short-term personnel benefits (4 973 249) (6 767 575)
Post-employment benefits (213 250) (287 868)
Employee benefits linked to profit sharing scheme (37 863) (282 373)
Total (5 224 362) (7 337 816

136eographical Information

The Bank and its main subsidiaries are based irfnlpourg, with the exception of one subsidiary which
is based in Hong Kong.

The following charts summarise the main informationthe Group in terms of the countries where the
subsidiaries are domiciled:

(in EUR)
31.12.2016 Average number of Profit (loss) Taxes on
(12 months) FTE employees Net revenue before tax income
Hong Kong 5 197 413 (600 446) 0
Luxembourg 328 123 761 48: 57 754 591 9 441 509
Total 333 123 958 89¢ 57 154 14& 9 441 509
31.12.2015 Average number of Profit (loss) Taxes on
(15 months) FTE employees Net revenue before tax income
Hong Kong 5 222 545 (477 727) 0
Luxembourg 312 141 863 86¢ 69 489 411 8 438 185
Total 317 142 086 411 69 011 684 8 438 185

1 4Events after the reporting period

Since the end of the reporting period, no evemyiko have a significant effect on the Group'sitims
or activities should be noted.
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Private Banking

Institutional Asset Management
Investment Banking

Asset Services

LUXEMBOURG ee
Banque Degroof Petercam Luxembourg
Zone d'activite La Cloche d'Or
12, rue Eugene Ruppert
2453 Luxembourg
T+3524535451

Degroof Petercam Asset Services
Zone d’activite La Cloche d'Or
12, rue Eugene Ruppert
2453 Luxembourg
T +352 26 64 50

DS Lux — Degroof Insurance Brokerage Company
Zone d’activite La Cloche d’'Or
14, rue Eugene Ruppert
2453 Luxembourg
T +352 45 89 22



